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"SpringBig," "the Company," "we," "us" or "our" refer to SpringBig Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries, unless the context otherwise requires.

Forward Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward looking statements that are subject to risks and uncertainties. All statements other than statements of historical fact included in this Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q are forward looking statements. Forward looking statements include our current expectations and projections relating to our financial condition, results of operations, plans,
objectives, future performance and business. You can identify forward looking statements by the fact that they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts. These statements may include words
such as "anticipate," "estimate," "expect," "project,” "plan," "intend," "believe," "may," "will," "should," "can have," "likely" and other words and terms of similar meaning in connection with any
discussion of the timing or nature of future cash flows, operating or financial performance or other events. These forward looking statements are not historical facts, and are based on current
expectations, estimates and projections about our industry and Company, management’s beliefs and certain assumptions made by management, many of which, by their nature, are inherently
uncertain and beyond our control. Accordingly, readers are cautioned that any such forward looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and are subject to certain risks, uncertainties
and assumptions that are difficult to predict. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in such forward looking statements are reasonable as of the date made, results may prove to be
materially different. Unless otherwise required by law, we disclaim any obligation to update our view of any such risks or uncertainties or to announce publicly the result of any revisions to the
forward-looking statements made in this report.

Factors that could cause our actual results and our financial condition to differ materially from those indicated in our forward looking statements include, but are not limited to, the following:

¢ trends in the cannabis industry and SpringBig’s market size, including with respect to the potential total addressable market in the industry;
*  SpringBig’s growth prospects;
* new product and service offerings SpringBig may introduce in the future;

¢ the price of SpringBig’s securities, including volatility resulting from changes in the competitive and highly regulated industry in which SpringBig operates and plans to operate, variations in
performance across competitors, changes in laws and regulations affecting SpringBig’s business and changes in the combined capital structure;

¢ the ability to implement business plans, forecasts, and other expectations, and identify and realize additional opportunities; and
®  other risks and uncertainties indicated from time to time in filings made with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”).

These risks are not exhaustive. New risk factors emerge from time to time and it is not possible for our management to predict all risk factors, nor can we assess the impact of all factors on our
business or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statements. Should one or more of these
risks or uncertainties materialize or should any of the assumptions made by the management of SpringBig prove incorrect, actual results may vary in material respects from those projected in these
forward-looking statements. Additional information concerning these and other factors that may impact the operations and projections discussed herein can be found in the section entitled “Risk
Factors” and in our periodic filings with the SEC. Our SEC filings are available publicly on the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov.

You should read this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q completely and with the understanding that our actual future results, levels of activity and performance as well as other events and circumstances
may be materially different from what we expect. We qualify all of our forward-looking statements by these cautionary statements.

Part I — Financial Information



Item 1. Financial Statements

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Contract assets
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Operating lease asset
Property and equipment, net
Convertible note receivable
Total assets

ASSETS

SPRINGBIG HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

September 30, 2023

December 31, 2022

(unaudited)

(audited)

(In thousands except share data)

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Short-term cash advance
Current maturities of long-term debt
Deferred payroll tax credits
Deferred revenue
Operating lease liability - current
Total current liabilities
Notes payable
Operating lease liability - non-current
Warrant liabilities
Total liabilities

Commitments and Contingencies

Stockholders’ Deficit

Common stock par value $0.0001 per share, 300,000,000 authorized at September 30, 2023; 43,478,502 issued and outstanding as of
September 30, 2023; (par value $0.0001 per share, 300,000,000 authorized at December 31, 2022; 26,659,711 issued and outstanding as of

December 31, 2022)
Additional paid-in-capital
Accumulated deficit
Total stockholders’ deficit
Total liabilities and stockholders’ deficit

$ 293§ 3,546
3,871 2,889

289 333

1,213 1,505

5,666 8,273

522 750

425 375

269 259

$ 6,882 $ 9,657
$ 2622 $ 1,056
2,376 2,554

780 —

4,560 5,451

1,751 —

35 291

390 465

12,514 9,817

— 2,814

153 316

80 338

$ 12,747 $ 13,285
4 3

27,495 22,701

(33,364) (26,332)

$ (5865) $ (3,628)
$ 6,882 $ 9,657

1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



Revenues

Cost of revenues

Gross profit

Operating expenses
Selling, servicing and marketing
Technology and software development
General and administrative

Total operating expenses

Loss from operations
Interest income
Interest expense
Change in fair value of warrants
Loss before income tax
Income tax expense
Net loss
Net loss per common share:
Basic and diluted

Weighted-average common shares outstanding
Basic and diluted

SPRINGBIG HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ended September 30,

2023

2022

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2023

2022

(revised)

(In thousands, except share and per share data)

(revised)

(In thousands, except share and per share data)

$ 6,888 7,232 $ 21,259 $ 19,859
1,604 1,688 4,465 5,209

5,284 5,544 16,794 14,650

1,864 3,075 6,528 9,103

1,912 2,811 6,257 8,358

4,200 3,215 10,202 8,790

7,976 9,101 22,987 26,251

(2,692) (3,557) (6,193) (11,601)

3 7 17 7

(400) (320) (1,114) (632)

347 811 258 3,691

(2,742) (3,059) (7,032) (8,535)

$ (2,742) (3,059) $ (7,032) $ (8,535)
$ (0.07) 0.12) $ (021) $ (0.41)
41,897,995 25,629,910 33,452,502 20,928,363

2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



SPRINGBIG HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY (DEFICIT) (UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ended September 30, 2023

Common Stock Additional Paid-in- Accumulated
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Total
Balance at June 30, 2023 41,402,847 $ 4 $ 26,975 (30,622) (3,643)
Stock-based compensation — — 239 — 239
Issue of common stock (1) 150,000 — 18 — 18
Issue of common stock (2) 1,700,000 — 263 — 263
RSU vesting 225,655 — — — —
Net loss — — — (2,742) (2,742)
Balance at September 30, 2023 43,478,502  $ 4 $ 27,495 (33,364) (5,865)
(1) Common shares issued in exchange for services rendered
(2) Common shares issued in connection with settlement of litigation
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2023
Common Stock Additional Paid-in- Accumulated
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Total
Balance at December 31, 2022 26,659,711 $ 3% 22,701 (26,332) (3,628)
Stock-based compensation — — 606 — 606
Exercise of stock options 727,233 274 — 274
Issue of common stock (1) 9,900,000 2,383 — 2,384
Issue of common stock (2) 4,115,903 1,250 — 1,250
Issue of common stock (3) 150,000 18 — 18
Issue of common stock (4) 1,700,000 263 — 263
RSU Vesting 225,655 — — —
Net loss — — (7,032) (7,032)
Balance at September 30, 2023 43,478,502 27,495 (33,364) (5,865)

(1) Equity raise

(2) Conversion of Senior Secured Convertible Notes in exchange for common shares
(3) Common shares issued in exchange for services rendered
(4) Common shares issued in connection with settlement of litigation

3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



Balance at June 30, 2022
Stock-based compensation
Exercise of stock options
Issue of common stock (1)
Net loss

Balance at September 30, 2022

(1) During Q3 2022, the Company issued 877,193 shares related to a commitment fee for the Cantor Equity Line

Balance at December 31, 2021
Stock-based compensation
Exercise of stock options
Recapitalization
Issue of common stock (1)
Net loss

Balance at September 30, 2022

(1) During Q3 2022, the Company issued 877,193 shares related to a commitment fee for the Cantor Equity Line

SPRINGBIG HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY (DEFICIT) (UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ended September 30, 2022

Common Stock Additional Paid-in- Capital Accumulated Deficit Total
Shares Amount Amount Amount Amount
25,290,270 $ 21,825 (18,701) 3,127
44,451 — 30 — 30
877,193 — — —
— — — (3,059) (3,059)
26,211,914 $ 21,855 (21,760) 98
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2022
Additional Paid-in-
Common Stock Capital Accumulated Deficit Total
Shares Amount Amount Amount Amount
17,862,108 2 17,682 (13,225) 4,459
= = 1,226 = 1,226
378,869 — 112 — 112
7,093,744 1 2,835 — 2,836
877,193 — — — —
— — — (8,535) (8,535)
26,211,914 3 21,855 (21,760) 98

4

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



SPRINGBIG HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2023 2022
(In thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (7,032) $ (8,535)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 199 191
Discount amortization on convertible note 633 146
Stock-based compensation expense 606 1,226
Bad debt expense 833 280
Accrued interest on convertible notes (13) 27
Amortization of operating lease right of use assets 393 —
Change in fair value of warrants (258) (3,691)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (1,815) (1,990)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 292 (1,499)
Contract assets 44 16
Accounts payable and other liabilities 1,558 1,630
Operating lease liabilities (403) =
Deferred payroll tax credits 1,751 —
Deferred revenue (256) (120)
Net cash used in operating activities (3,468) (12,318)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of convertible note (10) (256)
Purchases of property and equipment (249) (143)
Net cash used in investing activities (259) (399)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Business combination, net of cash acquired — 10,185
Proceeds from short-term cash advance 1,000 —
Repayment of short-term cash advance (220) —
Proceeds from convertible notes — 7,000
Proceeds from related party payable 125 —
Repayment of convertible notes (3,088) —
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 2,661 —
Cost of equity issuance (278) —
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 274 112
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities 474 17,297
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents $ (3,253) $ 4,580
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 3,546 2,227
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 293 $ 6,807
Supplemental cash flows disclosures
Conversion of convertible note and outstanding interest into common stock $ 1,250 $ 7,305
‘Warrant assumed in business combination at estimated fair value $ — $ 4,496
Right of use assets obtained in exchange for lease obligations - operating leases $ 165 $ —
Legal settlements satisfied through issuance of common stock $ 263 $ =
Satisfaction of professional fees through issuance of commons stock $ 18 $ —
Cost of equity issuance deducted from proceeds $ 342 $ —
Interest paid $ 467 $ —

5
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



SPRINGBIG HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

» G »

SpringBig Holdings, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries (the “Company,” “we,” “us,”, “our”, or “SpringBig”) developed a software platform that provides marketing and customer engagement
services to cannabis dispensaries and brands throughout the United States and Canada. The Company allows merchants to provide loyalty plans and rewards directly to consumers through an internet
portal and mobile applications. Our operational headquarters are in Boca Raton, Florida, with additional offices located in the United States and Canada.

The Company has one primary direct wholly-owned subsidiary, SpringBig, Inc.

On June 14, 2022 (the “Closing Date”), SpringBig Holdings, Inc. (formerly known as Tuatara Capital Acquisition Corporation (“Tuatara” or “TCAC”)), consummated the business combination of
SpringBig, Inc. (“Legacy SpringBig”) and HighJump Merger Sub, Inc., the wholly-owned subsidiary of Tuatara, pursuant to the Amended and Restated Agreement of Plan Merger, dated as of April
14, 2022, as amended, by and among Tuatara, HighJump Merger Sub, Inc. and Legacy SpringBig. Prior to the closing of the business combination (the “Closing”), Tuatara changed its jurisdiction of
incorporation by deregistering as a Cayman Islands exempted company and continuing and domesticating as a corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware. In connection with
the Closing, the registrant changed its name from Tuatara Capital Acquisition Corporation to “SpringBig Holdings, Inc.” SpringBig will continue the existing business operations of Legacy
SpringBig as a publicly traded company. See Note 10, Business Combination, to these consolidated financial statements for further information.

While the legal acquirer in the business combination is SpringBig for financial accounting and reporting purposes under U.S. GAAP, Legacy SpringBig is the accounting acquirer, with the merger
accounted for as a “reverse recapitalization.” A reverse recapitalization does not result in a new basis of accounting, and the financial statements of the combined entity represent the continuation of
the financial statements of Legacy SpringBig. Under this accounting method, SpringBig is treated as the “acquired” company and Legacy SpringBig is the accounting acquirer, with the transaction
treated as a recapitalization of Legacy SpringBig. SpringBig’s assets, liabilities and results of operations were consolidated with Legacy SpringBig’s beginning on the date of the business
combination. Except for certain warrant liabilities, the assets and liabilities of SpringBig were recognized at historical cost (which is consistent with carrying value) and were not material, with no
goodwill or other intangible assets recorded. The warrant liabilities, which are discussed in Note 13, Warrant Liabilities, were recorded at fair value. The consolidated assets, liabilities, and results of
operations of Legacy SpringBig became the historical financial statements, and operations prior to the closing of the business combination presented for comparative purposes are those of Legacy
SpringBig. Pre-merger shares of common stock and preferred stock of Legacy SpringBig were converted to shares of common stock of the combined company using the conversion ratio of 0.59289
and for comparative purposes, the shares and net loss per share of Legacy SpringBig prior to the merger have been retroactively restated using the conversion ratio.

Beginning June 15, 2022, the ticker symbols for the Company’s common stock and publicly-traded warrants were changed to “SBIG” and “SBIGW,” respectively, and commenced trading on The
Nasdaq Capital Market. The Company received net proceeds of $18.8 million, with gross proceeds of $25.1 million, which were in addition to the $7.0 million in Convertible Notes proceeds, which
were received in February 2022 in connection with Legacy SpringBig’s issuance of such notes (and which Convertible Notes and the interest due thereon were converted into common stock in
connection with the business combination. See Note 11, 15% Convertible Promissory Notes, to these consolidated financial statements). Of the amount received at the Closing, approximately
$8.8 million represented cash from the TCAC trust related to unredeemed shares; $6.1 million represented proceeds from the subscription for common stock from certain investors (the “PIPE
Financing”), and $10.0 million from the Secured Convertible Note (defined below). The Company incurred additional cash and non cash expenses totaling $8.7 million, resulting in net business
combination proceeds of $10.1 million.

On September 1, 2023, (i) the Board of Directors of SpringBig Holdings, Inc. determined that it would not be in the best interest of the Company or its shareholders to meet the continued listing
requirements of the Nasdaq Capital Market, (ii) the Company notified the Nasdaq Stock Market LLC (“Nasdaq”) that it was withdrawing its appeal of the Nasdaq Listings Qualification staff’s delist
determination dated March 7, 2023, for the Company’s failure to meet the market value of listed securities requirement in Nasdaq Listing Rule 5450(b)(2)(A) and (iii) the Company received a letter
from Nasdaq confirming (a) the withdrawal of the appeal, (b) as a result of the withdrawal, the



Company’s common stock and public warrants would be suspended at the open of business on September 5, 2023 and (c) Nasdaq would file a Form 25 Notification of Delisting with the SEC when
all of its internal procedural periods have run. The letter also noted that the Company failed to meet the minimum bid price requirement in Nasdaq Listing Rule 5450(a)(1).

The Company has taken the steps necessary so that its common stock is now quoted for trading on the OTCQX® Best Market and its public warrants are now quoted for trading on the OTC Market
under their current trading symbols “SBIG” and “SBIGW,” respectively, following the delisting from trading on the Nasdaq Capital Market. The Company’s common stock started trading on the
OTCQX® Best Market on September 6, 2023. The Company remains a reporting company under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”).

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation. The financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”).

The unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the rules and regulations of the SEC for Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and therefore do not include certain
information, accounting policies, and footnote disclosure information or footnotes necessary for a complete presentation of financial position, results of operations and cash flows in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. However, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals), which, in the opinion of management, are necessary for a fair presentation of the
financial statements, have been included. Operating results for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for future periods
or for the year ending December 31, 2023.

The financial data presented herein should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, as
reported in the 2022 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Going_Concern and Liquidity
Historically, the Company has incurred losses, which has resulted in an accumulated deficit of approximately $33.4 million as of September 30, 2023. Cash flows used in operating activities were
$3.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2023. As of September 30, 2023, the Company had a working capital deficit of approximately $6.8 million, inclusive of $0.3 million in cash and

cash equivalents to cover overhead expenses.

The Company’s ability to continue as a going concern is dependent on its ability to meet its liquidity needs through a combination of factors but not limited to, cash and cash equivalents, the ongoing
increase in revenue through increased usage by customers and new customers, and strategic capital raises. The ultimate success of these plans is not guaranteed.

Based on management projections for increases in revenue and cash on hand, we concluded that there was substantial doubt about our ability to continue to operate as a going concern for the 12
months following the issuance of the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis and do not include any adjustments that might result from uncertainty about the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

Foreign Currency

We translate the financial statements of our foreign subsidiaries, which have a functional currency in the respective country’s local currency, to U.S. dollars using month-end exchange rates for assets
and liabilities and



actual exchange rates for revenue, costs and expenses on the date of the transaction. Translation gains and losses are included within “other comprehensive income” on the consolidated statements of
operations. These gains and losses are immaterial to the financial statements.

Deferred Payroll Tax Credits

The Company may be eligible to receive certain payroll tax credits as a result of governmental legislation. Due to the complexities in calculating and qualifying for payroll tax credits, any benefits we
may receive are uncertain and may significantly differ from our current estimates. Accordingly, we record any benefits related to these types of credits upon both the receipt of the benefit and the
resolution of the uncertainties, including, but not limited to, the completion of any potential audit or examination, or the expiration of the related statute of limitations.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. We base our estimates on historical experience and various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable. We believe that
the assumptions and estimates associated with revenue recognition, software development costs, income taxes, equity-based compensation, and the allowance for credit losses have the greatest
potential impact on our consolidated financial statements. Therefore, we consider these to be our critical accounting policies and estimates.

Future events and their effects cannot be predicted with certainty; accordingly, accounting estimates require the exercise of judgment. Accounting estimates used in the preparation of these financial
statements change as new events occur, as more experience is acquired, as additional information is obtained, and as the operating environment changes. Actual results may differ materially from
these estimates.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentration of credit risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable. We place our cash and cash equivalents with
high credit-quality financial institutions. Such deposits may be in excess of federally insured limits. To date, we have not experienced any losses on our cash and cash equivalents. We perform
periodic evaluations of the relative credit standing of the financial institutions.

We perform ongoing credit evaluations of our customers’ financial condition and require no collateral from our customers. We maintain a credit loss reserve for doubtful accounts. The evaluation of
expected losses is based on the probability of default using historical loss rates, as well as adjustments for forward-looking information, including industry and macroeconomic forecasts, as required,
on our current accounts receivable balances. See Effective Accounting Pronouncements within this Note below for further information.

We had one customer representing 13% of our total revenues for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023. The same customer represented 10% and 11% of total revenues for the three
and nine months ended September 30, 2022, respectively.

At September 30, 2023, the same customer represented 17% of accounts receivable, and represented 12% of accounts receivable at December 31, 2022.

Transaction Costs

The Company incurred significant costs direct and incremental to the business combination and therefore to the recapitalization of the Company. We deferred such costs incurred in 2021. In 2022,
upon closing of the business combination, total direct transaction costs were allocated between equity and liability instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis that were newly issued in the

recapitalization. Amounts allocated to equity were recorded to additional paid-in capital, while amounts allocated to the specified liabilities were recorded as other expense. See Note 10, Business
Combination, to these consolidated financial statements for further information.



Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less, when acquired, to be cash equivalents. The Company maintains its cash with three commercial banks.

As of September 30, 2023 the Company’s cash balances in interest and non-interest bearing deposit accounts were below the federally insured limits of $250,000 per financial institution. We monitor
the financial condition of such institution and have not experienced any losses associated with these accounts.

Allowance for Credit Losses

The Corporation's reserve methodology used to determine the appropriate level of the allowance for credit losses ("ACL") is a critical accounting estimate. The ACL is maintained at a level believed
to be appropriate to provide for the current credit losses expected to be incurred related to the Company’s accounts and unbilled receivables at the balance sheet date. The evaluation of expected
losses is based on the probability of default using historical loss rates, as well as adjustments for forward-looking information, including industry and macroeconomic forecasts, as required.
Management's current methodology includes utilizing a historical loss rate equivalent to the average loss rate during the preceding forty-eight months and applying this rate to accounts and unbilled
receivables at the date of recording. This rate as well as the various quantitative and qualitative factors used in the methodologies are reviewed quarterly.

Effective Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2021, the FASB issued ASU 2021-08 - Business Combinations (Topic 805): Accounting for Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities from Contracts with Customers. The amendments in
this update require that an entity (acquirer) recognize and measure contract assets and contract liabilities acquired in a business combination in accordance with Topic 606. At the acquisition date, an
acquirer should account for the related revenue contracts in accordance with Topic 606 as if it had originated the contracts. For public business entities, the amendments in this update are effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022, including interim periods within those fiscal years. The amendments in this update should be applied prospectively to business combinations
occurring on or after the effective date of the amendments. Early adoption of the amendments is permitted, including adoption in an interim period. An entity that early adopts in an interim period
should apply the amendments (1) retrospectively to all business combinations for which the acquisition date occurs on or after the beginning of the fiscal year that includes the interim period of early
application and (2) prospectively to all business combinations that occur on or after the date of initial application. We adopted this standard on January 1, 2023. The adoption of this standard did not
have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements for the period ended September 30, 2023.

In June 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments — Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, to revise the criteria for the measurement,
recognition, and reporting of credit losses on financial instruments to be recognized when expected. In November 2019, FASB issued ASU 2019-10, Financial Instruments—Credit Losses (Topic
326), Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815), and Leases (Topic 842), which deferred the effective date of ASU 2016-13 to annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2022, with early
adoptiog permitted. We adopted this standard on January 1, 2023. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements for the period ended
September 30, 2023.



NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable, net consisted of the following (in thousands):

September 30, December 31,
2023 2022
Accounts receivable $ 5,346 $ 3,639
Unbilled receivables 839 731
Total Receivables 6,185 4,370
Less allowance for credit losses (2,314) (1,481)
Accounts receivable, net $ 3,871 $ 2,889

Bad debt expense was $0.4 million and $0.1 million for three month periods ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Bad debt expense was $0.8 million and $0.3 million for the nine

months ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

NOTE 4 - PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Prepaid expenses and other current assets consisted of the following (in thousands):

September 30, December 31,
2023 2022
Prepaid insurance $ 605 834
Other prepaid expenses 509 582
Deposits 99 89
$ 1,213 1,505
NOTE 5 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consist of the following (in thousands):
September 30, December 31,
2023 2022
Computer equipment $ 361 333
Furniture and fixtures 119 15
Data warehouse 286 286
Software 314 197
Total Cost 1,080 831
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (655) (456)
Property and Equipment $ 425 375

The useful life of computer equipment, software, furniture and fixtures, and the data warehouse is 3 years.

Depreciation and amortization expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023 was $0.1 million and $0.2 million, respectively. Depreciation and amortization expense for the three

and nine months
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ended September 30, 2022 was $0.1 million and $0.2 million, respectively. These amounts are included in general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of operations.
NOTE 6 - CONVERTIBLE NOTE RECEIVABLE
In April 2022, the Company purchased $250,000 in aggregate principal amount of convertible promissory note due April 1, 2026 (the “Convertible Note Receivable”).

The Convertible Note Receivable accrues interest at the rate of 5% per annum on the principal amount of the Convertible Note Receivable which is payable at maturity. The issuer may not
prepay the note prior to its maturity date without the consent of the Company. The Convertible Note Receivable is convertible into equity securities of the borrower in the event that the borrower
issues and sells shares to investors on or before the maturity date, subject to certain other conditions. In the event that the Convertible Note Receivable remains outstanding on the maturity date, then
the outstanding principal balance and any unpaid accrued interest shall automatically convert into equity securities of the borrower. Should the borrower consummate a change of control while this
note remains outstanding, the borrower shall repay the Company in cash in an amount equal to the outstanding principal amount of this Note plus any unpaid accrued interest on the original principal.

The conversion price is based on the occurrence of certain actions by the issuer.

The Company earned $3,000 and $10,000 in interest income on the Convertible Note Receivable for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023, respectively. The Company earned
$3,000 and $9,000 in interest income on the Convertible Note Receivable for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022, respectively.

NOTE 7 - SHORT-TERM CASH ADVANCE

On July 25, 2023, SpringBig Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) entered into an agreement (the “Cash Advance”) with Cedar Advance LLC (“Cedar”) to sell $1.4 million of future receivables
to Cedar in exchange for an advance of $1.0 million. The Cash Advance is repaid at an estimated rate of $49,000 per week until paid in full. The Company paid $53,000 in underwriting fees upon
entering into the Cash Advance. The Company incurred approximately $0.2 million of interest expense related to the Cash Advance for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023.

NOTE 8 - ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consisted of the following (in thousands):

September 30, December 31,
2023 2022
Accrued wages, commission and bonus $ 818 $ 1,145
Accrued expenses 268 148
Deferred financial advisory fees 1,000 1,006
Other liabilities 290 255
$ 2,376 $ 2,554

NOTE 9 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company incurred software development and information technology-related costs to a vendor related through common ownership to a major stockholder of approximately $4,000 and $12,000
for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023, respectively. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022, expenditures related to the same vendor were $44,000 and $107,000,
respectively. Amounts due to this related party were $0 and $3,000 at September 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively, and the related expense is recorded to technology and software
development costs on the consolidated statements of operations.
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During the month ended September 30, 2023, SpringBig’s CEO, Jeffrey Harris, loaned the Company $125,000 for use in operations. The balance outstanding is included in accrued expenses and
other current liabilities on the balance sheet. During the month ended October 31, 2023, the Company repaid Mr. Harris in full with $2,000 of interest calculated at a rate of 20% per annum.

NOTE 10 - BUSINESS COMBINATION

The business combination between Tuatara and Legacy SpringBig was consummated on June 14, 2022. Holders of an aggregate of 19,123,806 Class A ordinary shares of Tuatara sold in its
initial public offering exercised their right to have such shares redeemed for a full pro rata portion of the trust account holding the proceeds from Tuatara’s IPO, which was approximately $10.01 per
share, or $191,437,817 in the aggregate. The holders that did not elect to have their shares redeemed, received, following the domestication, additional shares of common stock which amounted to
876,194 shares of common stock, resulting in total shares of 1,752,388.

Beginning June 15, 2022, the ticker symbols for TCAC’s common stock and warrants were changed to “SBIG” and “SBIGW,” respectively, and commenced trading on The Nasdaq Global Market.
The Company received net proceeds of $18.8 million, with gross proceeds of $25.1 million, in addition to the $7.0 million Convertible Notes which were issued in February 2022 and were converted
into common stock at the Closing, see Note 11, 15% Convertible Promissory Notes, to these consolidated financial statements for further information. Of the amounts received, approximately
$8.8 million represents remaining funds for unredeemed shares from the TCAC trust; $6.1 million from PIPE Financing proceeds and $10.0 million from the Secured Convertible Note.

On April 29, 2022, the Company entered into the Stock Purchase Agreement with Cantor, which was subsequently amended on July 20, 2022, and later cancelled August 30, 2023. While this
agreement was in effect, the Company, in its sole discretion, had the right, but not the obligation, to issue and sell to Cantor, and Cantor was required to purchase from the Company, up to
$50.0 million of common shares, par value $0.0001 per share, subject to certain terms and conditions. In connection with the facility, the Company incurred a $1.5 million commitment fee, which it
settled in exchange for 877,193 shares of common stock.

The following table provides a summary of the significant sources and uses of cash related to the closing of the business combination on June 14, 2022, (in thousands):

Amount available after paying TCAC redeeming stockholders $ 8,771
Proceeds from convertible notes 10,000
Proceeds from PIPE Financing 6,100
TCAC operating account 264
Gross proceeds available at closing 25,135
Expenses paid at closing (6,346)
Net cash to Legacy SpringBig at closing $ 18,789
Post closing expense (cash paid or accrued for expenses by Legacy SpringBig) (8,679)
Net cash after closing $ 10,110

The following table provides a reconciliation of the common shares related to the business combination transaction:

TCAC non-redeeming shareholders 1,752,388
PIPE Investors 1,341,356
TCAC sponsor shareholders 4,000,000
Legacy SpringBig shareholders 18,196,526
Issued and outstanding 25,290,270
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Of the 1,341,356 shares of common stock shown above, 730,493 shares were issued to holders of the Convertible Note (which was converted at Closing), representing repayment of principal of
$7.0 million and outstanding interest of $305,000, in accordance with the terms of the Convertible Notes. See Note 11, 15% Convertible Promissory Note, to these consolidated financial statements
for further information.

NOTE 11 - 15% CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTES
In February 2022, the Company issued $7.0 million in aggregate principal amount of convertible promissory notes due September 30, 2022 (the “Convertible Notes”).

The Convertible Notes accrued interest at the rate of 15% per annum on the principal amount of the Convertible Notes, due and payable at the maturity date of September 30, 2022 (the
“Maturity Date”), if not converted prior to the maturity date. Under the terms of such notes, the conversion of the Convertible Notes could be triggered by the closing of the business combination
between Tuatara and Legacy SpringBig, the occurrence of the stated maturity date, or in connection with certain equity issuances. The Convertible Notes contained customary events of default such
as failures to observe or perform any covenants, obligation, condition or agreement contained in the Convertible Notes and commencement of bankruptcy.

In connection with the consummation of the business combination, the Convertible Notes and outstanding accrued interest converted in full into 730,493 shares of common stock at a price of $10.00
per share, representing repayment of principal of $7.0 million and outstanding interest of $305,000, in accordance with the terms of the Convertible Notes.

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022, the Company recorded $216,000 and $305,000 of interest expense on the Convertible Notes, respectively.
NOTE 12 — SENIOR SECURED CONVERTIBLE NOTES

In connection with the business combination, on June 14, 2022, the Company issued $11.0 million in aggregate principal amount of Senior Secured Original Issue Discount Convertible Note, due
June 14, 2024 (the “Secured Convertible Notes”), issued at a discount of $1.0 million, with proceeds of $10.0 million received on the Closing Date. The Secured Convertible Notes accrue interest at
the rate of 6.0% per annum which, along with equal principal payments through June 2024, are due in cash in arrears beginning six months after the notes’ issuance. The Company may, at its option,
satisfy each principal payment either in cash or, if certain conditions set forth in the Secured Convertible Notes are met, by issuing a number of shares of common stock equal to the amount due on
such date divided by the lower of (i) the number of shares determined based on at a rate of $12.00 per share or (ii) 93% of the volume-weighted average price prior to such monthly payment date.

A warrant representing 586,890 shares of common stock of the Company (the “Convertible Warrant™) with a fair value of $839,000 was also issued in a private placement with the purchaser party
thereto. To determine the fair value of the Convertible Warrant, the Company performed a Black-Scholes calculation as of June 14, 2022 using a stock price of $4.28, a strike price of $12.00, a risk
free rate of 3.61%, annualized volatilty of 65%, and a time to maturity of five years. The Convertible Warrant is exercisable for shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $12.00
per share, subject to certain anti-dilution adjustments. Warrants are classified as equity on SpringBig’s consolidated balance sheets.

The Secured Convertible Notes are secured against substantially all the assets of the Company and each material subsidiary, including Legacy SpringBig.

The Secured Convertible Notes include restrictive covenants that, among other things, limit the ability of the Company to incur additional indebtedness and guarantee indebtedness; incur liens or
allow mortgages or other encumbrances; prepay, redeem, or repurchase certain other debt; pay dividends or make other distributions or repurchase or redeem our capital stock; sell assets or enter into
or effect certain other transactions (including a reorganization, consolidation, dissolution or similar transaction or selling, leasing, licensing, transferring or otherwise disposing of assets of the
Company or its subsidiaries); issue additional equity (outside of the equity issuances under our equity compensation plan and other limited exceptions); enter into variable rate transactions;
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adopt certain amendments to our governing documents, among other restrictions; and maintain the Nasdaq minimum bid price requirement under Nasdaq Listing Rule 5450(a)(1). The Notes also
contain customary events of default.

On May 24, 2023 and May 25, 2023, the Company entered into amendments to the Secured Convertible Notes which provide, among other provisions, amended repayment terms, including extending
the term to March 2025, and an adjustment in the conversion share price to $1.00, and amended the warrant exercise price to $1.00. The Company accounted for the amendments as a debt
modification pursuant to ASC 470-50-40-10. The impact to the financial statements of the debt modification was not significant.

As noted in Note 1, on September 5, 2023, Nasdaq filed a Form 25 Notification of Delisting with respect to Springbig’s common stock and public warrants with the SEC. While delisting is an event
of default under the terms of the Secured Convertible Notes, the holder has not exercised its right to accelerate payment. The holder is entitled to certain remedies upon an event of default, including
but not limited to, conversion at the mandatory default amount of 115% of the principal amount of the Secured Convertible Notes at the default conversion price of 0.80 times the market price of our
common stock. As a result of the default, the debt has been classified as current on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet.

At September 30, 2023, the outstanding principal of the Secured Convertible Notes was $5.5 million with a carrying value of $4.6 million, net of a discount of $0.9 million. At December 31, 2022,
the outstanding principal of the Secured Convertible Notes was $11.0 million with a carrying value of $10.0 million.

The Company recorded $240,000 and $960,000 of interest expense related to the Secured Convertible Notes for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023, respectively. Interest expense
for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022 was $320,000 and $632,000, respectively.

NOTE 13 - WARRANT LIABILITIES

Prior to the business combination, at the time of their initial public offering, TCAC issued warrants to purchase 10,000,000 Class A ordinary shares at a price of $11.50 per share, for aggregate
consideration of $10.0 million as part of the units offered by the prospectus and, simultaneously with the closing of their initial public offering, issued in a private placement an aggregate of 6,000,000
private placement warrants for aggregate consideration of $6.0 million, each exercisable to purchase one Class A ordinary share at a price of $11.50 per share.

The Company accounts for the warrants in accordance with the guidance contained in ASC 815 Derivatives and Hedging, under which the warrants do not meet the criteria for equity treatment and
hence recorded as liabilities. Accordingly, we classify the warrants as liabilities at their fair value and adjust the warrants to fair value at each reporting period. This liability is subject to re-
measurement at each balance sheet date until exercised or expired, and any change in fair value is recognized in our statement of operations.

At September 30, 2023, the estimated fair value of the warrants is $80,000. At December 31, 2022, the estimated fair value of the warrants was $338,000.

The Company recorded a change in fair value gain of approximately $347,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2023 and a fair value gain of approximately $258,000 for the nine months
ended September 30, 2023. The Company recorded a change in fair value gain of approximately $0.8 million and $3.7 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022, respectively.

These amounts are included in the consolidated statements of operations.

The fair value is determined in accordance with ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement. See Note 19, Fair Value Measurements, to the accompanying consolidated financial statements for further
information.

NOTE 14 - REVENUE RECOGNITION

Effective January 1, 2022 the Company corrected the classification of credits given to customers to report the credits as a reduction of revenue.
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Below is a summary of the impact of the revision for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022.

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2022 2022 2022 2022
As reported Adjustment Revised As reported Adjustment Revised
Revenues $ 7,456 $ (224) $ 7,232 $ 20,404 $ (545) $ 19,859
Cost of revenues (1,912) 224 (1,688) (5,754) 545 (5,209)
Gross profit $ 5544 $ —  $ 5544 $ 14,650 $ — 3 14,650

The following table represents our revenues disaggregated by type (in thousands):

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2023 2022 2023 2022
Revenue
Brand revenue $ 236 $ 267 $ 741§ 704
Retail revenue 6,652 6,965 20,518 19,155
Total Revenue $ 6,888 $ 7232 $ 21,259 $ 19,859
Geographic Information
Revenue by geographical region consist of the following (in thousands):
Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2023 2022 2023 2022
Brand revenue
United States $ 236 $ 266§ 727 $ 703
Canada — 1 14 1
Retail revenue
United States 6,461 6,789 19,934 18,580
Canada 191 176 584 575
$ 6,888 $ 7,232 § 21,259  § 19,859

Revenues by geography are generally based on the country of the Company’s contracting entity. Total United States revenue was approximately 97% of total revenue for the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2023 and September 30, 2022.

As of September 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, substantially all of our long-lived assets were attributable to operations in the United States. An immaterial amount of assets are located in Canada.
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NOTE 15 - CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Contract assets consisted of the following as of (in thousands):

September 30, December 31,
2023 2022
Deferred sales commissions $ 289 333
The movement in the contract assets during the nine months ended September 30, 2023 and the year ended December 31, 2022, comprised the following (in thousands):
September 30, December 31,
2023 2022
Contract assets at start of the period $ 333 364
Expense deferred during the period 127 176
(less) amounts expensed during the period (171) (207)
Contract assets at end of the period $ 289 333
Contract liabilities consisted of the following as of (in thousands):
September 30, December 31,
2023 2022
Deferred retail revenues $ 27 278
Deferred brands revenues 8 13
Contract liabilities $ 35 291
The movement in the contract liabilities during the nine months ended September 30, 2023 and the year ended December 31, 2022, comprised the following (in thousands):
September 30, December 31,
2023 2022
Contract liabilities at start of the period $ 291 450
Amounts invoiced during the period 14,975 18,310
Less revenue recognized during the period (15,231) (18,469)
Contract liabilities at end of the period $ 35 291

NOTE 16 - STOCK BASED COMPENSATION

At the Special Meeting, in connection with the business combination, the Tuatara shareholders approved the SpringBig Holdings, Inc. 2022 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “2022 Incentive Plan”),

which became effective upon the Closing.
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The number of shares of our common stock initially reserved for issuance under the 2022 Incentive Plan was 1,525,175, which equaled the amount of shares of our common stock equal to 5% of the
sum of (i) the number of shares of our common stock outstanding as of the Closing and (ii) the number of shares of our common stock underlying stock options issued under the SpringBig, Inc. 2017
Equity Incentive Plan (as amended and restated) (the “Legacy Incentive Plan”) that were outstanding as of the Closing. At the shareholders’ meeting held on June 13, 2023, shareholders approved an
automatic annual increase in the number of shares authorized for issuance of up to 5% of the number of shares of common stock issued and outstanding on December 31 of the immediately preceding
calendar year beginning with the fical year ending December 31, 2023; provided that the annual increase with respect to the fiscal year ending December 31, 2023, which was 1,332,986 shares, took
effect on June 15, 2023. Shares subject to stock awards granted under the 2022 Incentive Plan that expire or terminate without being exercised in full, or that are paid out in cash rather than in shares,
will not reduce the number of shares available for issuance under the 2022 Incentive Plan.

Prior to the closing of the merger, Legacy SpringBig maintained an equity incentive plan (the “Legacy Incentive Plan”), which was originally established effective December 1, 2017. The Legacy
Incentive Plan permitted the grant of incentive stock options, non-qualified stock options, restricted stock awards, and restricted stock unit awards to Legacy SpringBig and its affiliates’ employees,

consultants and directors. SpringBig will not grant any additional awards under the Legacy Incentive Plan following the business combination.

The following table summarizes information on stock options outstanding as of September 30, 2023 under the Legacy Incentive Plan:

Options Outstanding Options Vested and Exercisable
Weighted Average Weighted Average ‘Weighted Average
Exercise Price (Per Remaining Contractual Exercise Price (Per
Number of Options Share) Number of Options Life (Years) Share)

Outstanding Balance, January 1, 2023 3,394,753 $ 0.57 3,250,236 554 § 0.54
Options granted —
Options exercised (727,233) $ 0.38
Options forfeited (25,876) $ 0.82
Options cancelled — 3 —
Outstanding Balance, September 30, 2023 2,641,644 g 0.62 2,569,385 505 $ 0.61

The intrinsic value of the options exercised during the nine months ended September 30, 2023 was $162,000. As of September 30, 2023, the intrinsic value of the 2,569,385 options outstanding and
exercisable was $0. As of September 30, 2023, the total compensation cost related to non-vested awards not yet recognized was $91,000 with a weighted-average period of nine months over which it
is expected to be recognized.

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023, $30,000 and $91,000 of compensation expense was recorded in connection with the Legacy Incentive Plan, respectively. During the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2022, compensation expense recorded in connection with the Legacy Incentive Plan was $0 and $1.2 million, respectively. These charges are recorded in
administrative expense on the consolidated statements of operations.
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The following table summarizes information on Restricted Stock Units outstanding as of September 30, 2023 under the 2022 Incentive Plan:

Restricted Stock Units Outstanding
Weighted Average Fair Value =~ Weighted Average

Number of RSUs (Per Share) Vesting (Years)
Outstanding Balance, January 1, 2022
RSUs granted 761,500 $ 1.97
RSUs forfeited (36,500)
Outstanding Balance, January 1, 2023 725,000 $ 1.97
RSUs granted 1,889,000 0.58
RSUs forfeited (13,500) $ 1.97
RSUs vested and common stock issued (225,655) $ 1.97
Outstanding Balance, September 30, 2023 2,374,845 $ 0.87 24

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023, compensation expense recorded in connection with the 2022 Incentive Plan was $208,000 and $515,000, respectively. These charges are
recorded in administrative expense on the consolidated statements of operations. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022, no compensation expense was recorded in connection
with the 2022 Incentive Plan.

The remaining expense of approximately $1,759,000 will be recognized in future periods through June 2026. The Restricted Stock Units vest one-third on each of the first, second, and third
anniversary after issuance.

NOTE 17 - LEASES

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) in February 2016 (“Lease Standard”). The amendments are effective
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021, for all entities, and interim periods within those fiscal years for public business entities and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2022, for all other entities. The Company adopted this standard on January 1, 2022.

SpringBig elected to take the cumulative transition approach to accounting for the adoption of the Lease Standard. This approach requires entities to apply the ASC 842 requirements in the period of
adoption (i.e., assuming an adoption date of January 1, 2022, SpringBig’s comparative financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 would need to apply ASC 842 only for
the year ended December 31, 2022). As of the adoption date of January 1, 2022, the Company recorded right of use assets of $1.1 million and lease liabilities of $1.1 million. A cumulative effect
adjustment to equity of $31,000 was recorded as of the adoption date.

The Company leases office facilities in Boca Raton, Florida, Seattle, Washington and Toronto, Ontario, Canada under non-cancelable operating lease agreements. The leases require monthly
payments ranging from $3,000 to $42,000 and expire on various dates through November 2024. In addition to minimum rent, the Company is required to pay a proportionate share of operating
expenses under these leases.

In June 2022, the Company entered into a lease with the current landlord for the Company’s corporate headquarters under which the current leases will be replaced by the new lease on a single floor
in the same building as the Company currently occupies. The new lease will commence on the sooner of the day the Company takes occupancy or day of substantial completion of leasehold
improvements. Neither of these events had taken place as of September 30, 2023. The new lease term is for 98 months. Monthly rental payments range from $38,000 to $48,000 over the life of the
lease.
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As of September 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the following amounts were presented on SpringBig’s consolidated balance sheets in accordance with the Lease Standard.

Balance Sheet

Assets:

Right of Use Asset - Operating Lease
Liabilities

Current

Non-current

Total Operating Lease Liability

September 30,

2023

December 31,
2022

522 $ 750
390 465
153 316
543 $ 781

For the nine months ended September 30, 2023 and September 30, 2022, the Company’s operating lease cost was $343,000 and $382,000, respectively. For the three months ended September 30,
2023 and September 30, 2022, the Company’s operating lease cost was $117,000 and $129,000, respectively. Other information pertaining to capitalized assets and liabilities under the leasing

standard is as follows.

Other information

Operating lease cost

Operating cash flows paid to operating leases

Right-of-use assets in exchange for new operating lease liabilities
‘Weighted-average remaining lease term — operating leases (months)
Weighted-average discount rate — operating leases

As of September 30, 2023, the Company’s lease liabilities mature as follows:

Fiscal Year:

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

Total lease payments

Less imputed interest

Present value of lease liabilities

NOTE 18 - COMITTMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Employment Agreements

&

2023

Operating Leases

Nine Months Ended September 30,

343
357
165
21.2
6.99%

100
371
50
50

579
(36)

543

The Company has entered into employment agreements with Jeffrey Harris, CEO of SpringBig, and Paul Sykes, CFO of SpringBig, which became effective as of the consummation of the business

combination.
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Litigation

The Company evaluates the possible resolution of any legal and other contingencies when losses are possible in accordance with ASC 450, Contingencies (“ASC 450”). Significant judgment is
required in both the determination of the probability of an outcome as well as the determination of an estimate of the amount of any potential loss.

During the three months ended September 30, 2023, the Company settled a dispute concerning the granting in 2017 of a non-exclusive, perpetual license to install and use certain of the Company’s
software and derivative works, subject to certain limitations, including being restricted to industries other than cannabis. As a result of the settlement, the Company recorded a liability of
approximately $0.8 million. As of September 30, 2023, the Company has settled a portion of this liability through cash payments of $0.1 million and an equity issuance of $0.3 million. The remaining
$0.4 million will be paid in equal installments of $40,000 on the last day of each month until the balance is settled in full.

Employee Retention Payroll Tax Credits

In March 2020, the U.S. government enacted the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act) to provide economic and other relief as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. The
CARES Act includes, among other items, provisions relating to refundable employee retention payroll tax credits. Due to the complex nature of the employee retention credit computations, any
benefits we may receive are uncertain and may significantly differ from our current estimates. We plan to record any benefit related to these credits upon both the receipt of the benefit and the
resolution of the uncertainties, including, but not limited to, the completion of any potential audit or examination, or the expiration of the related statute of limitations. During the nine months ended
September 30, 2023, we received $2.0 million related to these credits, recorded a liability of $0.3 million to a consultant through accounts payable. We have deferred recognition of remaining
$1.8 million, which is recorded as deferred payroll tax credits on the consolidated balance sheets.

NOTE 19 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The fair value of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities reflects management’s estimate of amounts that the Company would have received in connection with the sale of the assets or paid in
connection with the transfer of the liabilities in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In connection with measuring the fair value of its assets and liabilities, the
Company seeks to maximize the use of observable inputs (market data obtained from independent sources) and to minimize the use of unobservable inputs (internal assumptions about how market
participants would price assets and liabilities).

The following fair value hierarchy is used to classify assets and liabilities based on the observable inputs and unobservable inputs used in order to value the assets and liabilities:

Level 1: Valuation is based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities that are accessible at the reporting date. Because valuations are based on quoted prices that
are readily and regularly available in an active market, valuation of these products does not entail a significant degree of judgment.

Level 2: Valuation is determined from pricing inputs that are other than quoted prices in active markets that are either directly or indirectly observable as of the reporting date. Observable inputs
include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, and interest rates and yield curves that are
observable at commonly quoted intervals.

Level 3: Valuation is based on inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and unobservable. Level 3 inputs include situations where there is little, if any, market activity for the
financial instrument. The inputs into the determination of fair value generally require significant management judgment or estimation. .
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Liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The balances of the Company’s liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of September 30, 2023, are as follows (in thousands):

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Fair Value

Liabilities:
Public warrants 80 — — 80
$ 80 §$ — 3 — 3 80

The following is a description of the methodologies used to estimate the fair values of liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis and within the fair value hierarchy.
Warrant liabilities

Prior to the business combination, TCAC issued warrants to purchase 10,000,000 Class A ordinary shares at a price of $11.50 per whole share, as part of the units offered by the prospectus for their
initial public offering and, simultaneously with the closing of their initial public offering, issued in a private placement an aggregate of 6,000,000 private placement warrants, each exercisable to
purchase one Class A ordinary share at a price of $11.50 per share.

The Company utilizes a fair value approach to account for its warrants based on the quoted price at September 30, 2023, the calculation is consistent with ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement, with
changes in fair value recorded in current earnings.

At September 30, 2023, the value of the public warrants was approximately $0.1 million using a closing price of $0.005.
Changes in Fair Value

The following tables provides a roll-forward in the changes in fair value in the public warrants for the nine months ended September 30, 2023,

Warrants

Balance, January 1, 2023 $ 338
Change in fair value (258)
Balance, September 30, 2023 $ 80
Changes in fair value included in earnings for the period relating to liabilities held at September 30, 2023 $ (258)

There were no transfers of financial liabilities between levels of the fair value hierarchy during the nine months ended September 30, 2023.

Other Fair Value Considerations — Carrying value of accounts receivables, contract assets, prepaid expenses and other assets, accounts payable and accrued expenses approximate fair value due
to their short-term maturities and/or low credit risk.

NOTE 20 - STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity reflect the reverse recapitalization on June 14, 2022, as discussed in Note 10, Business Combination, to these consolidated financial
statements. Because the Company was determined to be the accounting acquirer in the transaction, all periods presented prior to
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consummation of the transaction reflect the historical activity and balances of Legacy SpringBig, Inc. (other than common stock and potentially issuable shares underlying stock options which have
been retroactively restated).

Immediately after giving effect to the business combination, the following equity securities of SpringBig were issued and outstanding: (i) 5,752,388 shares of SpringBig common stock issued to
the holders of Tuatara Class A ordinary shares and Tuatara Class B ordinary shares that automatically convert into Tuatara Class A ordinary shares upon the occurrence of the business combination in
accordance with Tuatara’s amended and restated memorandum and articles of association as consideration in the business combination (comprised of 1,752,388 Class A ordinary shares after giving
effect to the redemptions and the issuance of shares to public shareholders who did not elect to redeem their public shares and 4,000,000 Class B ordinary shares that converted into common stock),
(ii) 18,196,526 shares of SpringBig common stock issued to the stockholders of SpringBig as consideration in the business combination, (iii) 10,000,000 warrants to purchase shares of SpringBig
common stock issued to holders of the Public Shares upon conversion of warrants to purchase Tuatara Class A ordinary shares in connection with the business combination (each, a “New SpringBig
Public Warrant”), (iv) 6,000,000 warrants to purchase shares of SpringBig common stock issued to Sponsor (as defined below) upon conversion of warrants to purchase Tuatara Class A Common
Stock, and (v) 1,310,000 shares of SpringBig common stock issued to private investors (the “PIPE Investors”) in the PIPE Financing, plus 31,356 shares paid to certain PIPE Investors pursuant to the
Convertible Notes.

Prior to the consummation of the business combination, the capital stock of Legacy SpringBig consisted of Series A, B and Seed preferred stock which was automatically convertible into
common stock at the earlier of a $50.0 million initial public offering or vote of 63% of majority of preferred stockholders. The conversion rate of all preferred stock was at a one to one ratio to
common stock. The preferred shares of stock were converted to SpringBig common stock at the Closing Date.

With the consummation of the business combination, Legacy SpringBig issued and outstanding shares were converted into shares of SpringBig common stock as follows:

Legacy SpringBig Conversion Rate SpringBig
Series B Preferred 4,585,202 0.59289 2,718,522
Series A Preferred 5,088,944 0.59289 3,017,184
Series Seed Preferred 6,911,715 0.59289 4,097,887
Common Stock 14,105,371 0.59289 8,362,933
30,691,232 18,196,526

Sponsor Escrow Agreement

At the time of the Closing, TCAC Sponsor, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Sponsor”), Tuatara and certain independent members of Tuatara’s board of directors entered into an escrow
agreement (“Sponsor Escrow Agreement”), providing that (i) immediately following the Closing, Sponsor and certain of Tuatara’s board of directors’ independent directors shall deposit an aggregate
of 1,000,000 shares of our Common Stock (such deposited shares, the “Sponsor Earnout Shares”) into escrow, (ii) the Sponsor Earnout Shares shall be released to the Sponsor if the closing price of
our Common Stock equals or exceeds $12.00 per share (as adjusted for share splits, share dividends, reorganizations, and recapitalizations) on any twenty (20) trading days in a thirty (30) trading-day
period ending at any time after the Closing Date and before the fifth anniversary of the Closing Date, and (iii) the Sponsor Earnout Shares will be terminated and canceled by us if such condition is
not met by the fifth anniversary of the Closing Date.

Contingent and Earnout Shares

The holders of Legacy SpringBig’s common stock and the “engaged option holders” (employees or engaged consultants of Legacy SpringBig who held Legacy SpringBig options at the effective time
of the merger and who remains employed or engaged by Legacy SpringBig at the time of such payment of contingent shares) shall be
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entitled to receive their pro rata portion of such number of shares, fully paid and free and clear of all liens other than applicable federal and state securities law restrictions, as set forth below upon
satisfaction of any of the following conditions:

a. 7,000,000 contingent shares if the closing price of the Company’s common stock equals or exceeds $12.00 per share on any twenty (20) trading days in a thirty (30)-trading day period at any
time after the Closing Date and no later than 60 months following the Closing Date;

b. 2,250,000 contingent shares if the closing price of the Company’s common stock equals or exceeds $15.00 per share on any twenty (20) trading days in a thirty (30)-trading day period at any
time after the Closing Date and no later than 60 months following the Closing Date; and

c. 1,250,000 contingent shares if the closing price of the Company’s common stock equals or exceeds $18.00 per share on any twenty (20) trading days in a thirty (30)-trading day period at any
time after the Closing Date and no later than 60 months following the Closing Date.

With the consummation of the business combination, the Company’s authorized capital stock is 350,000,000 shares, consisting of 300,000,000 shares of common stock and 50,000,000 shares of
preferred stock, with par value of 0.0001 per share.

On May 31, 2023, SpringBig raised gross cash proceeds of approximately $3.0 million through a public equity offering and in addition $1.25 million of the outstanding principal of the Secured
Convertible Notes were converted into common shares. In aggregate, 14.0 million common shares were issued, of which, approximately 1.0 million related to conversion of a portion of the Secured
Convertible Notes to common shares on June 15, 2023. The cash proceeds from the public equity offering, after payment of transaction related fees, were $2.5 million and these funds were in part
used to make further repayments of principal of the Secured Convertible Notes and in part for general corporate purposes.

NOTE 21 - NET LOSS PER SHARE

Given the consummation of the business combination, ASC 805, Business Combination states that the equity structure for the prior period of Legacy SpringBig (the accounting acquirer) is restated
using the exchange ratio established in the acquisition agreement to reflect the number of shares of the accounting acquiree issued in the business combination.

As of September 30, 2023 and 2022, there were 43,478,502 and 26,211,914 shares of common stock issued and outstanding, respectively.

Basic net loss per share is computed by dividing the net loss by the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted net loss per share is computed by
giving effect to all potential shares of common stock, including outstanding stock options. Basic and diluted net loss per share was the same for each period presented, given that there are losses
during the period, the inclusion of all potential common shares outstanding would have been anti-dilutive.
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The following table reconciles basic and diluted earnings per share for the nine months ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively (in thousands, except share and per share data).

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2023 2022 2023 2022
Loss per share:
Numerator:
Net loss $ (2,742) $ 3,059) $ (7,032) $ (8,535)
Denominator
Weighted-average common shares outstanding
Basic and diluted 41,897,995 25,629,910 33,452,502 20,928,363
Net loss per common share
Basic and diluted $ 0.07) $ 0.12) $ 0.21) $ 0.41)

The anti-dilutive securities excluded from the weighted-average shares used to calculate the diluted net loss per common share for the nine months ended September 30, 2023 and 2022 were as
follows:

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2023 2022
Shares unvested and subject to exercise of stock options 72,259 168,603
Shares subject to outstanding common stock options 2,569,385 3,423,488
Shares subject to convertible notes stock conversion 5,461,929 916,667
Shares subject to warrants stock conversion 16,586,980 16,586,980
Shares subject to contingent earn out 10,500,000 10,500,000
Restricted stock units 2,374,845 761,500

NOTE 22 - BENEFIT PLAN

The Company maintains a safe harbor 401(k) retirement plan for the benefit of its employees. The plan allows participants to make contributions subject to certain limitations. Company matching
contributions were $84,000 and $373,000 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023, respectively. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022, Company matching
contributions were $64,000 and $160,000, respectively.

NOTE 23 - INCOME TAXES

In determining quarterly provisions for income taxes, the Company uses the annual estimated effective tax rate applied to the actual year-to-date profit or loss, adjusted for discrete items arising in
that quarter. The Company’s annual estimated effective tax rate differs from the U.S. federal statutory rate primarily as a result of state taxes, foreign taxes, and changes in the Company’s full
valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets.

NOTE 24 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Management has considered subsequent events through November 13, 2023, the date this report was issued, and there were no events that required additional disclosure.

On October 12, 2023 the Company issued 575,000 shares of common stock to the holder of the Secured Convertible Notes as consideration for conversion of $50,000 of the outstanding principal on
the Notes.
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On October 16, 2023 the Company entered into an agreement (the “ACF Cash Advance”) with Agile Capital Funding, LLC (“ACF”) to sell $1.1 million of future receivables to ACF in exchange for
an advance of $750,000. The ACF Cash Advance is repaid at an estimated weekly rate of $41,000 per week. The Company paid $37,000 in underwriting fees upon entering the ACF Cash Advance.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Business Overview

SpringBig Holdings, Inc. is a market-leading software platform providing customer loyalty and marketing automation solutions to retailers and brands. We have leveraged our deep expertise in
loyalty marketing to develop solutions that address the key challenges faced by retailers and brands, including those in the cannabis industry. Stringent, complex, and rapidly evolving regulations
have resulted in restricted access to traditional marketing and advertising channels for cannabis retailers and brands, preventing them from utilizing many traditional methods for effectively accessing
and engaging with consumers. In addition, the lack of industry-specific data and market intelligence solutions limit cannabis retailers' and brands' ability to efficiently market their products, thereby
hindering their growth. Our platform enables our clients to increase brand awareness, engage customers, improve retention, and access actionable consumer feedback data to improve marketing. Our
clients can use our loyalty marketing, digital communications, and text/email marketing solutions to drive new customer acquisition, customer spend and retail foot traffic. Our proven B2B2C
software platform creates powerful network effects between retailers and brands and provides an ability for both to connect directly with consumers. As retailers and brand scale, a virtuous cycle
amplifies growth, ultimately expanding SpringBig's reach and strengthening our value proposition.

SpringBig serves approximately 1,300 brand and retailer clients across more than 2,900 distinct retail locations in North America. Our clients distribute more than 2.2 billion messages annually, and
in the last year more than $8.0 billion of gross merchandise value was accounted for by clients utilizing our platform.

Business Combination and Public Company Cost

On June 14, 2022, SpringBig Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation (formerly known as Tuatara Capital Acquisition Corporation (“Tuatara” or “TCAC”)), consummated the previously announced
business combination (the “business combination”) of Tuatara and SpringBig, Inc. (“Legacy SpringBig”), a Delaware corporation. Pursuant to the merger agreement, prior to the closing of the
business combination, Tuatara changed its jurisdiction of incorporation by deregistering as a Cayman Islands exempted company and continuing and domesticating as a corporation incorporated
under the laws of the State of Delaware. Prior to the closing date, and in connection with the Closing, Tuatara changed its name to SpringBig Holdings, Inc. Legacy SpringBig was deemed to be the
accounting acquirer in the business combination based on an analysis of the criteria outlined in Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 805. While Tuatara was the legal acquirer in the business
combination, because Legacy SpringBig was deemed the accounting acquirer, the historical financial statements of Legacy SpringBig became the historical financial statements of the combined
company, upon the Closing.

The business combination was accounted for as a “reverse recapitalization.” A reverse recapitalization does not result in a new basis of accounting, and the financial statements of the combined entity
represent the continuation of the financial statements of Legacy SpringBig in many respects. Under this method of accounting, Tuatara was treated as the “acquired” company for financial reporting
purposes. For accounting purposes, Legacy SpringBig was deemed to be the accounting acquirer in the transaction and, consequently, the transaction was treated as a recapitalization of Legacy
SpringBig (i.e., a capital transaction involving the issuance of stock by Tuatara for stock of Legacy SpringBig). Accordingly, the consolidated assets, liabilities and results of operations of Legacy
SpringBig became the historical financial statements of the combined company, and Tuatara’s assets, liabilities and results of operations were consolidated with Legacy SpringBig beginning on the
acquisition date. Operations prior to the business combination are presented as those of Legacy SpringBig. The net assets of Tuatara were recognized at historical cost (which are consistent with
carrying value), with no goodwill or other intangible assets recorded.

As a consequence of the business combination, Legacy SpringBig became the successor to an SEC-registered and Nasdaq-listed company, which requires us to incur additional expenses and
implement procedures and processes to address public company regulatory requirements and customary practices. We have and expect to continue to incur additional annual expenses as a public
company for, amongst other things, directors’ and officers’ liability insurance, director fees and additional internal and external accounting, legal and administrative resources, including increased
audit and legal fees, notwithstanding the fact that we are no longer listed on Nasdagq.

On September 1, 2023, (i) the Board of Directors of SpringBig Holdings, Inc. determined that it would not be in the best interest of the Company or its shareholders to meet the continued listing
requirements of the Nasdaq Capital Market, (ii) the Company notified Nasdaq that it was withdrawing its appeal of the Nasdaq Listings Qualification staff’s delist determination dated March 7, 2023,
for the Company’s failure to meet the market value of listed securities requirement in Nasdaq Listing Rule 5450(b)(2)(A) and (iii) the Company received a letter from Nasdaq confirming (a) the
withdrawal of the appeal, (b) as a result of the withdrawal, the Company’s common stock and public warrants would be suspended at the open of business on September 5, 2023 and (c) Nasdaq would
file a Form 25 Notification of Delisting with the SEC when all of its internal procedural periods have run. The letter also noted that the Company failed to meet the minimum bid price requirement in
Nasdaq Listing Rule 5450(a)(1). Nasdaq filed this Form 25 on September 8, 2023.
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The Company has taken the steps necessary so that its common stock and public warrants are now quoted for trading on the OTCQX® Best Market under their current trading symbols “SBIG” and
“SBIGW,” respectively, following the delisting from trading on the Nasdaq Capital Market. The Company remains, and expects to continue to be, a reporting company under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”).

Key Operating and Financial Metrics

We monitor the following key financial and operational metrics to evaluate our business, measure our performance, identify trends affecting our business, formulate business plans, and make strategic
decisions. The following is our analysis for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, in thousands:

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2023 2022 2023 2022
Revenue $ 6,888 $ 7,232 $ 21,259 $ 19,859
Net loss (2,742) (3,059) (7,032) (8,535)
Adjusted EBITDA (882) (3,396) (3,370) (9,354)
Number of retail clients 1,356 1,390 1,356 1,390
Net revenue retention 93 % 119 % 93 % 119 %
Number of messages (million) 609 566 1,685 1,501

For a reconciliation of net loss to Adjusted EBITDA, see “EBITDA” and “Adjusted EBITDA,” below.
Revenue

We generate revenue from the sale of monthly subscriptions that provide retail clients with access to an integrated platform through which they can manage loyalty programs and communications
with their consumers. We also generate additional revenue from these retail clients when the quantum of messages sent to consumers exceeds the amounts in the subscription package. The
subscriptions generally have twelve-month terms (which typically are not subject to early termination without a cancellation fee payable by the client), are payable monthly, and automatically renew
for subsequent and recurring twelve-month periods unless notice of cancellation is provided in advance.

The Company's revenue growth is generally achieved through a mix of new clients, clients upgrading their subscriptions (as new clients will frequently enter into a relatively low level of subscription
(with respect to the size of such client's database and the number of their customers on such database) and/or the number of pre-determined communication credits), which frequently occurs shortly
after such a client initially becomes a client, and the excess use element of revenues. “Excess use” revenues are revenues derived from amounts charged to clients for exceeding the pre-determined
credit volume set forth in the applicable client’s subscription agreement. Given this combination, and particularly the tendency for clients to upgrade soon after becoming a client, the Company does
not actively monitor revenue split between new and existing clients, preferring to use the split between subscription and excess use in combination with net dollar retention and the number of clients
as key metrics, as described below.

Other Key Operating Metrics

The growth in our revenues is a key metric at this stage in our development as a Company and therefore to provide investors with additional information, we have disclosed in the table above the
number of our retail clients, our net revenue retention rate and the number of standardized messages distributed through the SpringBig platform by our clients. We regularly review the key operating
and financial metrics set forth above to evaluate our business, our growth, assess our performance and make decisions regarding our business. We believe these key metrics are useful to investors both
because they allow for greater transparency with respect to key metrics used by management in its financial and operational decision-making, and they may be helpful in evaluating the state and
growth of our business.

Number of Retail Clients. We disclose in the table above the number of discrete SpringBig platforms used by clients of the business at the end of the relevant period. We view this number as an
important metric to assess the performance of our business because an increased number of clients drives growth, increases brand awareness and helps contribute to our reach and strengthening our
value proposition.
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Net Revenue Retention. We believe that the growth in the use of our platform by our clients is an important metric in evaluating our business and growth. We monitor our dollar-based net revenue
retention rate on a rolling basis to track the maintenance of revenue and revenue-increasing activity growth. “Net revenue retention rate” (also referred to as “net dollar retention rate”) does not have a
standardized meaning and is therefore unlikely to be comparable to similarly titled measures presented by other companies, and further, investors should not consider it in isolation. When evaluating
our retention rates and calculating our net revenue retention rate, SpringBig calculates the average recurring monthly revenue from retail clients, adjusted for losses, increases and decreases in
monthly subscriptions during the prior twelve months divided by the average recurring monthly subscription revenue over the same trailing twelve-month period.

We view a net revenue retention rate exceeding 100% as positive because this is indicative of increasing subscription revenue without including the impact of the initial recurring revenue from new
clients during the month in which they are on-boarded. We believe that we can drive this metric by continuing to focus on existing clients and by revenue-increasing activities, such as client upgrades.
Net revenue retention is measured over the twelve-month period ending at the reporting date and if the ratio exceeds 100% this is an indication of upgrades from clients exceeding the value of any
lost clients and downgrades in subscriptions. The net revenue retention is calculated based on subscription revenues only and does not include the impact of excess use revenue.

Number of Messages Sent. We believe that the volume of messages sent, measured in standardized message size, is important as it indicates the frequency of use and level of engagement of our
platform by our clients. Messages are distributed by text, email, and direct push notifications to mobile applications.

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA

To provide investors with additional information regarding our financial results, we have disclosed EBITDA, which is a non-GAAP financial measure that we calculate as net income before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortization and Adjusted EBITDA, which represents EBITDA adjusted for certain unusual, infrequent items, or non-cash items (such as bad debt expense and stock-based
compensation).

We present EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA because they are key measures used by our management and board of directors to evaluate our operating performance, generate future operating plans
and make strategic decisions regarding the allocation of investment capacity. Accordingly, we believe that EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA provide useful information to investors and others in
understanding and evaluating our operating results in the same manner as our management and board of directors, and is widely used by analysts, investors and competitors to measure a company's
operating performance.

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA have limitations, and you should not consider these in isolation or as a substitute for analysis of our results as reported under GAAP, including net loss, which we
consider to be the most directly comparable GAAP financial measure. Some of these limitations are:

* although depreciation and amortization are non-cash charges, the assets being depreciated may have to be replaced in the future, and neither EBITDA nor Adjusted EBITDA reflect cash
capital expenditure requirements for such replacements or for new capital expenditure requirements;

¢ EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA do not reflect changes in, or cash requirements for, our working capital needs; and
¢ EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA do not reflect tax payments that may represent a reduction in cash available.

Because of these limitations, you should consider EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA alongside other financial performance measures, including net loss and our other GAAP results.
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A reconciliation of net loss before taxes to non-GAAP EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA is as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

2023 2022 2023 2022
Net loss before taxes $ (2,742) $ (3,059) $ (7,032) $ (8,535)
Interest income 3) (7) 17) (7)
Interest expense 400 320 1,114 632
Depreciation expense 68 67 199 191
EBITDA 2,277) (2,679) (5,736) (7,719)
Stock-based compensation 239 — 606 1,226
Bad debt expense 453 94 833 280
Business combination related bonus — — — 550
Severance and related payments — — 135 —
Settlement of litigation, including legal costs 1,050 — 1,050 —
Change in fair value of warrants (347) (811) (258) (3,691)
Adjusted EBITDA $ (882) $ (3,396) $ (3,370) $ (9,354)

Factors Affecting Our Performance
Overall Economic Trends
The overall economic environment and related changes to consumer behavior have a significant impact on our business. Overall, positive conditions in the broader economy promote consumer

spending on marketplaces and our customers’ products, while economic weakness, which generally results in reduced consumer spending, may have a negative impact on our customers’ sales, which
in turn may impact our revenue.

Growth and Retention of Customers

Our revenue grows primarily through acquiring and retaining customers and expanding relationships with customers over time, increasing the revenue per customer. We have historically been able to
attract, retain and grow relationships with customers as a result of the Company’s comprehensive product suite, differentiated loyalty programs, consistent communications with customers, and
reliable customer service.

Regulation and Maturation of Cannabis Markets

We believe that we will have significant opportunities for growth as more jurisdictions legalize cannabis for medical and/or adult use and the regulatory environment continues to develop. We intend
to explore new expansion opportunities as additional jurisdictions legalize cannabis for medical or adult use and leverage our existing business model to enter new markets. We believe our
understanding of the space coupled with our experienced sales force will enable us to quickly enter and execute in new markets and capture new business, which we sustain via our best-in-class

product offerings.

We expect competition to intensify in the future as the regulatory regime for cannabis becomes more settled and the legal market for cannabis becomes more accepted, which may encourage new
participants to enter the market, including established companies with substantially greater financial, technical and other resources than existing market participants.

We believe that maintaining and enhancing our brand identity and our reputation is critical to maintaining and growing our relationships with customers and to our ability to attract new customers.

We believe our platform’s scale and strong customer loyalty market themselves; however, we implement a variety of marketing efforts to attract the remaining retailers and brands not yet on our
platform. Marketing efforts include multiple strategies designed to attract and retain both retail and brands subscribers.
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Negative publicity, whether or not justified, relating to events or activities attributed to us, our employees, customers or others associated with any of these parties, may tarnish our reputation and
reduce the value of our brand. Given our high visibility, we may be more susceptible to the risk of negative publicity. Damage to our reputation and loss of brand equity may reduce demand for our
platform and have an adverse effect on our business, operating results and financial condition. Moreover, any attempts to rebuild our reputation and restore the value of our brand may be costly and
time consuming, and such efforts may not ultimately be successful.

We also believe that the importance of our brand recognition and reputation will continue to increase as competition in our market continues to develop. If our brand promotion activities are not
successful, our operating results and growth may be adversely impacted.

Components of Our Results of Operations
Revenue

SpringBig provides its retail customers with access to an integrated platform that provides all the functions of the Company’s proprietary software, which uses proprietary technology to send text,
email, and push messages to the customer’s contacts. This access is provided to customers under a contract, with revenue generated from monthly fixed fees for credits (up to the pre-contracted
amount) and optional purchases of additional credits.

Cost of Revenue
Cost of revenue consists primarily of amounts payable to distributors of messages on behalf of the Company’s customers across cellular networks and integrations.
Selling, Servicing and Marketing Expenses

Selling, servicing and marketing expenses consist of salaries, benefits, travel expense and incentive compensation for our sales, servicing and marketing employees. In addition, sales, servicing and
marketing expenses include business acquisition marketing, events cost, and branding and advertising costs.

Technology and Software Development Expenses

Technology and software development costs consist of salaries and benefits for employees, including engineering and technical teams who are responsible for building new products, as well as
maintaining and improving existing products. We capitalize certain costs associated with technology and software development in accordance with ASC 350-40, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other —
Internal Use Software, but these are limited in quantum as we are constantly and regularly making enhancements to our technology platform and do not consider them appropriate to be capitalized.
Capitalized costs are generally amortized over a three-year period commencing on the date that the specific software product is placed in service. We believe that continued investment in our platform
is important for our growth.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses consist primarily of payroll and related benefits costs for our employees involved in general corporate functions including finance, human resources and investor
relations, as well as costs associated with the use by these functions of software and equipment. All rent, insurance and other occupancy costs are also included in general and administrative expenses
as are professional and outside services related to legal, audit and other services, and stock-based compensation expenses.
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Results of Operations
Comparison of Three Months Ended September 30, 2023 compared to Three Months Ended September 30, 2022

The following tables set forth our results of operations for the periods indicated:

Three Months Ended September 30,

2023 2022 Increase (decrease) %
(in thousands)

Revenue $ 6,888 $ 7,232 $ (344) (5)%
Cost of revenue 1,604 1,688 (84) (5)%
Gross profit 5,284 5,544 (260) (5)%
Operating expenses:

Selling, servicing and marketing 1,864 3,075 (1,211) (39)%

Technology and software development 1,912 2,811 (899) (32)%

General and administrative 4,200 3,215 985 31 %
Total operating expenses 7,976 9,101 (1,125) (12)%
Loss from operations (2,692) (3,557) 865 (24)%

Interest income 3 7 4) nm

Interest expense (400) (320) (80) nm

Change in fair value of warrants 347 811 (464) nm
Loss before taxes (2,742) (3,059) 317 (10)%

Provision for income taxes — — — —
Loss after taxes $ (2,742) $ (3,059 $ 317 (10)%

nm-not meaningful

Revenues. Revenues decreased $0.3 million for the three months ended September 30, 2023, representing a 5% decrease compared with the same period in 2022. Our subscription revenue was $5.8
million for the three months ended September 30, 2023 compared with $5.1 million in the same period in 2022, representing a 13% year-over-year increase. The excess use revenue declined by 55%
year-over-year reflecting the fact that some excess use revenue in the comparable prior period had converted into recurring subscription revenues due to clients upgrading their subscriptions and
clients being more diligent in remaining within their budgeted subscription messaging amounts.

The Company's net revenue retention rate was 93% for the twelve months ended September 30, 2023, compared with 100% reported for the twelve months ended June 30, 2023, and compared with
119% for the twelve months ended September 30, 2022. The ratio has historically been more than 100% but has reduced currently as customers are impacted by the challenging macro-economic
conditions impacting the cannabis market which in some cases has weakened their ability to pay and led the Company to suspend access to our software platform.

Gross Profit. Gross profit decreased to $5.3 million for the three months ended September 30, 2023 from $5.5 million for the three months ended September 30, 2022, representing a 5% decrease,
which is consistent with the revenue decline and gross profit margin remained consistent year-on-year at 77%.

Operating Expenses. Our operating expenses decreased by $1.1 million, or 12%, for the quarter ended September 30, 2023 compared with the same period in 2022.

Selling, servicing and marketing expenses decreased by $1.2 million, or 39%, for the quarter ended September 30, 2023, compared to the same period in 2022, due to lower compensation expense as
a result of lower employee headcount.

Technology and software development expenses decreased by $0.9 million, or 32%, for the quarter ended September 30, 2023, compared to the same period in 2022, with the decrease being
attributable to lower expenses associated with the use of offshore contract developers and a reduction in compensation expense.
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General and administrative expenses increased by $1.0 million, or 31%, for the quarter ended September 30, 2023, compared to the same period in 2022. The increase was attributable to the
settlement of litigation (including legal costs) of $1.1 million and increases in bad debt expense by $0.3 million and stock compensation expense by $0.2 million. Excluding these items, general and
administrative expenses decreased by $0.6 million, or 20%, due to lower insurance and professional advisor consulting costs.

Interest Expense. Interest expense was $0.4 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2023 due to interest payable on the Secured Convertible Notes and on the Cedar Cash Advance.

Change in fair value of warrants. The liability relating to warrants issued by SpringBig is included on the balance sheet at the fair value prevailing at the end of the accounting period and any change
in value is reported in the income statement. At September 30, 2023, the market value of the public warrants, which are listed on the OTC, was $0.005 per warrant compared with $0.0267 at June 30,
2023. The decrease in value, which is recognized as income in our income statement for the three months ended September 30, 2023, was $0.3 million.

Comparison of Nine Months Ended September 30, 2023 compared to Nine Months Ended September 30, 2022

The following tables set forth our results of operations for the periods indicated:

Nine months Ended September 30,

2023 2022 Increase (decrease) %
(in thousands)

Revenue 21,259 19,859 $ 1,400 7 %
Cost of revenue 4,465 5,209 (744) (14)%
Gross profit 16,794 14,650 2,144 15 %
Operating expenses:

Selling, servicing and marketing 6,528 9,103 (2,575) (28)%

Technology and software development 6,257 8,358 (2,101) (25)%

General and administrative 10,202 8,790 1,412 16 %
Total operating expenses 22,987 26,251 (3,264) (12)%
Loss from operations (6,193) (11,601) 5,408 47)%

Interest income 17 7 10 nm

Interest expense (1,114) (632) (482) nm

Change in fair value of warrants 258 3,691 (3,433) nm
Loss before taxes (7,032) (8,535) 1,503 (18)%

Provision for income taxes — — — —
Loss after taxes (7,032) (8535 $ 1,503 (18)%

nm-not meaningful

Revenues. Revenues increased $1.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2023, representing a 7% increase compared with the same period in 2022. Our subscription revenue was $17.2
million for the nine months ended September 30, 2023 compared with $14.4 million in the same period in 2022, representing 19% year-over-year growth. The excess use revenue declined by 30%
year-over-year due to the weaker economy and the fact that some excess use revenue in the comparable prior period had converted into recurring subscription revenues due to clients upgrading their
subscriptions. Our revenue from Brands clients grew by 5% and was $0.7 million for both nine month periods ending September 30, 2023 and 2022.

Gross Profit. Gross profit increased to $16.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2023 from $14.7 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2022, representing a 15% increase.
The gross profit margin improved from 73% for the nine months ended September 30, 2022 to 79% for the nine months ended September 30, 2023. The improving margin is due to messaging costs,

which are the main expense in our cost of revenue reducing year-on-year due to operating efficiencies and a larger proportion of messages being distributed directly into mobile applications.



Operating Expenses. Our operating expenses decreased by $3.3 million, or 12%, for the nine months ended September 30, 2023 compared with the same period in 2022.

Selling, servicing and marketing expenses decreased by $2.6 million, or 28%, for the nine months ended September 30, 2023, compared to the same period in 2022, due to lower compensation
expense as a result of lower employee headcount.

Technology and software development expenses decreased by $2.1 million, or 25%, for the nine months ended September 30, 2023, compared to the same period in 2022, with the decrease being
attributable to lower expenses associated with the use of offshore contract developers and a reduction in compensation expense.

General and administrative expenses increased by $1.4 million, or 16%, for the nine months ended September 30, 2023, compared to the same period in 2022. The increase was mainly attributable to
the settlement of litigation (including legal costs) of $1.1 million and increases in bad debt expense by $0.5 million.

Interest Expense. Interest expense was $1.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2023 due to interest payable on the Secured Convertible Notes and the Cedar Cash Advance.

Change in fair value of warrants. The liability relating to warrants issued by SpringBig is included on the balance sheet at the fair value prevailing at the end of the accounting period and any change
in value is reported in the income statement. At September 30, 2023, the market value of the public warrants, which are listed on the OTCQX® Best Market, was $0.0050 per warrant compared with
$0.0211 at December 31, 2022. The decrease in value, which is recognized as income in our income statement for the nine months ended September 30, 2023, was $0.3 million.

Liquidity, Capital Resources, & Going Concern

We have incurred net losses since inception, and experienced negative cash flows from operations. Prior to the business combination, we financed our operations and capital expenditures primarily
through the private sales of equity securities and revenue. The net losses since the business combination have been financed through the capital received because of the business combination and cash
advances as described below. Our primary uses of cash in the short-term are to fund our operations as we continue to grow our business.

Additionally, following the execution of the merger agreement, we entered into two incremental financing agreements. An institutional investor through a securities purchase agreement agreed to
purchase $11.0 million of Secured Convertible Notes and a number of warrants equal to one-half of the principal amount of the notes divided by the volume weighted average price on the trading day
prior to closing. This financing closed immediately after the business combination. As discussed in Notes 12 and 13 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements, these Secured Convertible
Notes were amended on May 24, 2023 and May 25, 2023 to extend the due date for repayment, adjust the conversion share price to $1.00, and adjust the exercise price of the attached warrants to
$1.00. The Company accounted for the amendments as a debt modification pursuant to ASC 470-50-40-10, and the impact to the financial statements was not significant.

On May 31, 2023, SpringBig raised gross cash proceeds of approximately $3.0 million through a public equity offering and in addition $1.25 million of the outstanding principal of the Secured
Convertible Notes was converted into common shares. In aggregate, 14.0 million common shares were issued, of which, approximately 1.0 million related to conversion of a portion of the Secured
Convertible Notes to common shares on June 15, 2023. The cash proceeds from the public equity offering, after payment of transaction related fees, were $2.5 million and these funds were in part
used to make further repayments of principal of the Senior Secured Convertible Notes and in part for general corporate purposes.

On July 25, 2023, the Company entered into an agreement (the “Cash Advance”) with Cedar Advance LLC (“Cedar”) to sell $1.4 million of future receivables to Cedar in exchange for an advance of
$1.0 million. The Cash Advance is repaid at an estimated weekly rate of $49,000 per week. The Company paid $53,000 in underwriting fees upon entering into the Cash Advance.

On October 16, 2023 the Company entered into an agreement (the “ACF Cash Advance”) with Agile Capital Funding, LLC (“ACF”) to sell $1.1 million of future receivables to ACF in exchange for
an advance of $750,000. The ACF Cash Advance is repaid at an estimated weekly rate of $41,000 per week. The Company paid $37,000 in underwriting fees upon entering the ACF Cash Advance.

The following table summarizes our cash, accounts receivable, and working capital at September 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022 (in thousands):
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September 30, 2023 December 31, 2022

Cash and cash equivalents $ 293 $ 3,546
Accounts receivable, net 3,871 2,889
Working capital (6,848) (1,544)

As of September 30, 2023, based on the factors described in this sub-section, we concluded that there was substantial doubt about our ability to continue to operate as a going concern for the 12
months following the issuance of the financial statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. This estimate is based on our current business plan and expectations and assumptions in light of
current macroeconomic conditions. We have based these estimates on assumptions that may prove to be wrong and could use our available capital resources sooner than we currently expect, and
future capital requirements and the adequacy of available funds will depend on many factors, including those described under "Risk Factors" in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. Although we are
not currently a party to any agreement or letter of intent with respect to potential investments in, or acquisitions of, complementary businesses, services or technologies, we may enter into these types
of arrangements in the future, which could also require us to seek additional equity financing, incur indebtedness, or use cash resources. We have no present understandings, commitments, or
agreements to enter into any such acquisitions.

To the extent existing cash and investments and cash from operations are not sufficient to fund future activities, we may need to raise additional funds. We may seek to raise additional funds through
equity, equity-linked or debt financings. If we raise additional funds by incurring indebtedness, such indebtedness may have rights that are senior to holders of our equity securities and could contain
covenants that restrict operations. Any additional equity financing may be dilutive to stockholders. Further, the Secured Convertible Notes also contain a number of restrictive covenants that may
impose significant restrictions on obtaining future financings, including restrictions on SpringBig’s ability to do any of each following while the Secured Convertible Notes remain outstanding: (i)
incurring additional indebtedness and guaranteeing indebtedness; (ii) incurring liens or allowing mortgages or other encumbrances; (iii) prepaying, redeeming, or repurchasing certain other debt; (iv)
paying dividends or making other distributions or repurchasing or redeeming its capital stock; (v) selling assets or entering into or effecting certain other transactions (including a reorganization,
consolidation, dissolution or similar transaction or selling, leasing, licensing, transferring or otherwise disposing of assets of the Company or its subsidiaries); (vi) issuing additional equity (outside of
the equity facility, issuances under our equity compensation plan and other limited exceptions until a resale registration statement registering all of the common stock underlying the notes and
warrants with the Investor is declared effective by the SEC); (vii) entering into variable rate transactions (exclusive of the equity facility); and (viii) adopting certain amendments to our governing
documents, among other restrictions. In addition, the noteholders have the right, for 18 months following the first closing of the notes and warrants with the Investor, to purchase up to 30% of the
securities we may offer in subsequent financings. Accordingly, we may be limited in our ability to raise additional capital on acceptable terms or at all within such limitations. Such restrictions may
be waived by consent of the noteholder. As noted in Note 12, the Company is currently in default on the Secured Convertible Notes. The holder is entitled to certain remedies upon an event of default,
including but not limited to, conversion at the mandatory default amount of 115% of the principal amount of the Secured Convertible Notes at the default conversion price of 0.80 times the market
price of our common stock.

SpringBig’s ability to continue as a going concern is dependent on its ability to meet its liquidity needs through a combination of factors including, but not limited to, cash and cash equivalents, the
ongoing increase in revenue through increased usage by customers and new customers, and strategic capital raises. The ultimate success of these plans is not guaranteed. See the section titled “Going
Concern and Liquidity” in Note 2 of the notes to these consolidated financial statements included in this report for more information.

Cash Flows

The following table summarizes our cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2023 and 2022 (in thousands):

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2023 2022
Statement of Cash Flows Data:
Total cash (used in) provided by:
Operating activities $ (3,468) $ (12,318)
Investing activities (259) (399)
Financing activities 474 17,297
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ (3253) $ 4,580
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Operating Activities

Cash used in operating activities consists primarily of net loss adjusted for certain non-cash items, including depreciation and amortization, non-cash stock compensation expenses, changes in
the fair value of financial instruments and the effect of changes in working capital and other activities.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2023, the net loss was $7.0 million and the cash used in operating activities was $3.5 million. The difference of $3.4 million is due to $1.2 million
non-cash items (including depreciation, amortization, stock-based compensation and change in the fair value of warrants), $0.8 million bad debts, and the receipt of $1.7 million relating to refundable
employee retention payroll tax credits under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES Act) offset by a $0.3 million reduction in deferred revenues. The $0.5 million decrease
in working capital comprises primarily a $1.8 million increase in accounts receivable and a $2.2 million increase in accounts payable, including $0.8 million relating to the Cedar Cash Advance. Due
to the complex nature of the employee retention credit computations we plan to defer any benefit related to these credits until we have reasonable certainty, including, but not limited to, the
completion of any potential audit or examination or the expiration of the related statute of limitations.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2022, the net loss was $8.5 million and cash used in operating activities was $12.3 million, with the difference of $3.8 million comprising
primarily a $3.7 million reduction in the fair value of warrants and a $1.9 million change in working capital offset by $1.6 million of non-cash items.

Investing Activities

SpringBig has low capital investment requirements, with our needs being comprised primarily of computer equipment and office furniture and related items. Cash used in investing activities
was $0.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2023 and $0.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2022.

Financing Activities

During the nine months ended September 30, 2023, the net cash used in financing activities was approximately $0.5 million representing $2.9 million repayment of principal of the Secured
Convertible Notes and $0.2 million of equity issuance costs which were partially offset by $2.7 million net proceeds from the issuance of common stock and $0.3 million from the exercise of stock
options by executives and employees.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2022, a period during which the business combination was completed, the net cash provided by financing activities was $17.3 million comprising $10.2
million net cash from the business combination, $7.0 million from the issuance of convertible notes, that were subsequently converted into equity on completion of the business combination and $0.1
million from the exercise of stock options by executives and employees.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

At September 30, 2023, there were no off-balance sheet arrangements between us and any other entity that have, or are reasonably likely to have, a current or future effect on our financial
condition, changes in financial condition, revenue or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures, or capital resources that is material to shareholders.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP. The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses, and related disclosures. We evaluate our estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis. Our estimates are based on historical experience
and various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Our actual results could differ from these estimates.

We believe that the assumptions and estimates associated with revenue recognition, software development costs, income taxes, equity-based compensation, and allowance for credit losses have the
greatest potential impact on our consolidated financial statements. Therefore, we consider these to be our critical accounting policies and estimates. For further information on all of our significant
accounting policies, see the Company's audited consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, as reported in our 2022 Annual Report on
Form 10-K.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See the section titled “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” in Note 2 of the notes to our unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements included in this Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for more information.

Emerging Growth Company and Smaller Reporting Company Status

Section 107 of the JOBS Act provides that an "emerging growth company" can take advantage of the extended transition period provided in Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act for complying
with new or revised accounting standards. In other words, an "emerging growth company" can delay the adoption of certain accounting standards until those standards would otherwise apply to
private companies. Section 107 of the JOBS Act provides that any decision to opt out of the extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards is irrevocable. We

have elected to use this extended transition period under the JOBS Act.

We are also a “smaller reporting company” as defined in the Exchange Act. We may continue to be a smaller reporting company even after we are no longer an emerging growth company. We may
take advantage of certain of the scaled disclosures available to smaller reporting companies and will be able to take advantage of these scaled disclosures for so long as the market value of our voting
and non-voting common stock held by non-affiliates is less than $250 million measured on the last business day of our second fiscal quarter, or our annual revenue is less than $100 million during the
most recently completed fiscal year and the market value of our voting and non-voting common stock held by non-affiliates is less than $700 million measured on the last business day of our second
fiscal quarter.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We have operations within the United States and limited operations with customers located in Canada, and we are exposed to market risks in the ordinary course of our business, including the effects
of interest rate changes, inflation and exchange rate charges. Information relating to quantitative and qualitative disclosures about these market risks is set forth below.

Interest Rate Fluctuation Risk

We consider all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

The primary objective of our investment activities is to preserve principal while maximizing income without significantly increasing risk. Because our cash and cash equivalents have a relatively
short maturity, our portfolio's fair value is relatively insensitive to interest rate changes. In future periods, we will continue to evaluate our investment policy in order to ensure that we continue to
meet our overall objectives.

Inflation

We do not believe that inflation has had a material effect on our business, financial condition, or results of operations. We continue to monitor the impact of inflation in order to minimize its effects
through pricing strategies, productivity improvements and cost reductions. If our costs were to become subject to significant inflationary pressures, we may not be able to fully offset such higher costs
through price increases. Our inability or failure to do so could harm our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Exchange Rate Risk

We have operations in Toronto, Ontario, Canada and customers located in Canada. Given our reporting currency is US dollars, this results in exchange rate translation risk. The effect is minimized by
matching our Canadian income and expense with our Canadian customers being invoiced in their local currency. The exchange rate risk to our financial statements is immaterial.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls are procedures that are designed with the objective of ensuring that information required to be disclosed in our reports under the Exchange Act, such as this Quarterly Report, is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported in accordance with the rules of the SEC. Disclosure controls are also designed with the objective of ensuring that such information is accumulated
appropriately and communicated to management, including the chief executive officer and chief financial officer, as appropriate, to allow for timely decisions regarding required disclosures.
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Our Chief Executive Officer (our principal executive officer) and Chief Financial Officer (our principal financial and accounting officer) evaluated the effectiveness of our “disclosure controls and
procedures” (as defined in the Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) as of September 30, 2023, the end of the period covered by this report. Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of such date. See the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2022, for a description of the Company’s material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

No change in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) occurred during the quarter ended September 30, 2023 that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Part II — Other Information

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

As previously disclosed, on May 27, 2022, plaintiffs Michael Gross and Yuzz Buzz, LLC (“YB”), of which Mr. Gross is allegedly the majority owner, filed a complaint (as amended, the
“Complaint”) against the Company in the Circuit Court of the 15th Judicial Circuit in and for Palm Beach County, Florida. Mr. Gross was the Company’s co-founder and former 45% owner, and on
or about July 10, 2017, Mr. Gross entered into a Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release (the “Release Agreement”) with the Company, Jeffrey Harris, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board of Directors, and various related parties, pursuant to which (1) Mr. Gross released various claims and transferred to the Company all his shares of common stock and interest in
the Company and (2) the Company made certain payments to Mr. Gross and related parties and, concurrently with the Release Agreement, executed a license agreement (the “License Agreement”)
that granted YB a non-exclusive, perpetual license to install and use certain of the Company’s software and derivative works, subject to certain limitations including being restricted to industries other
than cannabis. The remaining counts of the Complaint are for declaratory judgment and alleged breaches of the Settlement Agreement and License Agreement. The plaintiffs seek specific
performance of the License Agreement or, in the alternative, damages for the Company’s alleged breach of the License Agreement. In the case of specific performance, the parties dispute the cost to
YB of delivery of the software. On July 7, 2023, the parties formally engaged a professional mediator in an effort to reach a settlement and on July 18, 2023, the parties began formal mediation.

Effective September 7, 2023 (the “Effective Date”), YB, Mr. Gross and Jason Wright, on the one hand (together, the “YB Parties”), and the Company, SpringBig, Inc., Medici Holdings V, Inc. (f/k/a
SpringBig, Inc.) and Mr. Harris, on the other hand (together, the “SpringBig Parties”), entered into the Settlement Agreement (the “Settlement Agreement”), pursuant to which the parties agreed to
resolve and settle all litigation, claims and disputes between them as more specifically set forth in, and subject to the terms and conditions of, the Settlement Agreement. Mr. Gross and Mr. Wright
represent that they are the sole members of YB.

Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement, the SpringBig Parties shall pay the YB Parties the total amount of $525,170, of which $125,170 is to be paid within 15 business days of the Effective Date (the
“First Installment Payment”) and the remaining amount paid monthly for 10 months starting the month of October 2023 (the “Monthly Installment Payments™).

In addition, the parties agreed that (i) the Company and Mr. Gross sign a lock-up agreement, in substantially the form attached to the Settlement Agreement (the “Gross Lock-up Agreement”), and
Mr. Gross shall pay $127.50 to the Company, after which the Company shall issue to Mr. Gross 1,275,000 shares (the “Gross Share Issuance”) of the Company’s common stock, par value $0.0001 per
share (the “Common Stock™), all of which would be subject to the Gross Lock-up Agreement; (ii) the Company and Mr. Wright sign a lock-up agreement, in substantially the form attached to the
Settlement Agreement (the “Wright Lock-up Agreement”), and Mr. Wright shall pay $42.50 to the Company, after which the Company shall issue to Mr. Gross 425,000 shares (the “Wright Share
Issuance” and, together with the Gross Share Issuance, the “YB Share Issuances”) of the Common Stock, all of which would be subject to the Wright Lock-up Agreement and (iii) the Company shall
use its reasonable best efforts to register the resale of the shares issued to Mr. Gross and Mr. Wright within 90 calendar days of the Effective Date pursuant to an appropriate registration statement
with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

In addition, the parties agreed that the License Agreement shall terminate effective as of the latest of receipt of the First Installment Payment by the YB Parties, receipt of all Monthly Installment
Payments by the YB Parties, and completion of the YB Share Issuances.
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In addition, the parties signed and caused to be filed a joint stipulation for dismissal with prejudice of the action, in substantially the form attached to the Settlement Agreement (the “Stipulation”),
and the Stipulation indicated that each party is to bear its own costs and attorney’s fees. Notwithstanding the Settlement Agreement, no party admits to having any liability to the other or having
engaged in any wrongdoing, malfeasance, misfeasance or negligent act.

On September 7, 2023, the Company and Mr. Gross signed the Gross Lock-up Agreement and on September 8, 2023, the Company and Mr. Wright signed the Wright Lock-up Agreement, which
generally provide that the shares issued in the YB Share Issuances, as applicable, are subject to a lock-up period of 365 days following the Effective Date. This means that, during the applicable lock-
up period, subject to certain customary exceptions, Mr. Gross and Mr. Wright may not offer for sale, contract to sell, or sell any shares issued in the applicable YB Share Issuances, except that they
may transfer or sell, in the aggregate among all permitted transferees and in accordance with applicable securities and other laws, up to 850,000 shares of Common Stock beginning on the 181st day
after the Effective Date, provided that the filing of the Stipulation has occurred.

The foregoing is a summary of certain terms and provisions of the Settlement Agreement and is not complete and is subject to, and qualified in its entirety by the provisions of, the Settlement
Agreement, a copy of which is filed as Exhibit 10.1 to this Report.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Our business involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider the risks described under the caption “Risk Factors” in Part I, Item 1A of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2022, as well as the risks, uncertainties and other information set forth in the reports and other materials filed or furnished by us with the SEC when making investment decisions
regarding our securities. We cannot assure you that any of the events discussed therein will not occur. These risks could have a material and adverse impact on our business, prospects, results of
operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Our obligations to the holder of the L1 Notes are secured by a security interest in substantially all of our assets, so if we default on those obligati the holder could foreclose on, liquidate
and/or take possession of our assets. If that were to happen, we could be forced to curtail, or even to cease, our operations.

On April 29, 2022, the Company entered into the Notes and Warrants Purchase Agreement with the Investor, pursuant to which the Company, on June 14, 2022, issued the Secured Convertible Notes
and the Convertible Warrants exercisable for shares of common stock of the Company at an exercise price of $12 per share. Simultaneously, Legacy SpringBig entered into a guaranty agreement to
guarantee the Company’s obligations under the Secured Convertible Notes and the Company and Legacy SpringBig entered into a security agreement, pursuant to which the holder was granted a
security interest in all the assets of the Company and Legacy SpringBig to secure repayment of amounts due under the Secured Convertible Notes.

On May 24, 2023 and May 25, 2023, the Company entered into amendments to the Secured Convertible Notes which provide, among other provisions, amended repayment terms, including extending
the term to March 2025, and an adjustment in the conversion share price to $1.00, and an amendment of the warrant exercise price to $1.00. On September 5, 2023, Nasdaq filed a Form 25
Notification of Delisting with respect to SpringBig’s common stock and public warrants with the SEC. While delisting is an event of default under the terms of the Secured Convertible Notes, the
holder has not exercised its right to accelerate payment. The holder is entitled to certain remedies upon an event of default, including but not limited to, conversion at the mandatory default amount of
115% of the principal amount of the Secured Convertible Notes at the default conversion price of 0.80 times the market price of our common stock.

Following an event of default on our obligations under the Secured Convertible Notes, the holder could foreclose on its security interests and liquidate or take possession of some or all the assets of
the Company, Legacy SpringBig and its subsidiaries, which would harm our business, financial condition and results of operations and could require us to curtail, or even to cease our operations.

The issuance of our shares of common stock in connection with the purchase agreement related to the Secured Convertible Notes and the Convertible Warrants or that may otherwise be issued
and/or sold by the Company or selling securityholders, could cause substantial dilution, which could materially affect the trading price of our shares of common stock.

To the extent that the Secured Convertible Notes and/or Convertible Warrants are converted into or exercised for shares of common stock, substantial amounts of our shares of common stock will be
issued. Under certain default circumstances, the Secured Convertible Notes and Convertible Warrants may become exercisable at prevailing prices or discounts to prevailing prices, and the
conversion price of the Secured Convertible Notes and exercise price of the Convertible Warrants will be adjusted in the event that the Company issues additional equity securities under certain
issuances below the applicable
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conversion and/or exercise price. In addition, we have the ability under certain circumstances to make payments on the Secured Convertible Notes in shares of common stock at then prevailing
market prices. We are required to reserve three times the original number of shares obtainable under the Secured Convertible Notes and Convertible Warrants to provide for these circumstances.
Although we cannot predict the number of our shares of common stock that will actually be issued in connection with any such conversions and/or sales, such issuances could result in substantial
decreases to our stock price.

On May 24, 2023 and May 25, 2023, the Company entered into amendments to the Secured Convertible Notes which provide, among other provisions, amended repayment terms, including extending
the term to March 2025, and an adjustment in the conversion share price to $1.00, and an amendment of the warrant exercise price to $1.00. On September 5, 2023, Nasdaq filed a Form 25
Notification of Delisting with respect to SpringBig’s common stock and public warrants with the SEC. While delisting is an event of default under the terms of the Secured Convertible Notes, the
holder has not exercised its right to accelerate payment. The holder is entitled to certain remedies upon an event of default, including but not limited to, conversion at the mandatory default amount of
115% of the principal amount of the Secured Convertible Notes at the default conversion price of 0.80 times the market price of our common stock.

Further, substantial amounts of our shares of common stock may also be issued, sold and/or resold pursuant to the Company’s equity incentive plan, which could cause further substantial dilution of
our shares of common stock and materially impact the trading price of our shares of common stock.

In addition, the way we account for the Secured Convertible Notes and Convertible Warrants may impact our reported or future financial results and the market price of our shares of common stock.
For example, we have adopted ASU 2020-06, Accounting for Convertible Instruments and Contracts in an Entity's Own Equity and elected to carry the Secured Convertible Notes and Convertible
Warrants at amortized cost. See the section titled “Effective Accounting Pronouncements” in Note 2 “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies,” and Note 11 “Senior Secured Convertible Notes”
in our audited consolidated financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for more information.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
Effective September 13, 2023, the Company completed the YB Share Issuances, which did not involve any underwriters, underwriting discounts or commissions, or any public offering.

Effective September 29, 2023, the Company issued 150,000 shares of common stock to Douglas J. Stukel in exchange for services rendered to the Company (the “Services Issuance”), which did not
involve any underwriters, underwriting discounts or commissions, or any public offering.

The Company did not receive any proceeds from the YB Share Issuances or the Services Issuance. The Company completed the YB Share Issuances and the Services Issuance in transactions not
requiring registration under Section 5 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, in reliance on the exemption afforded by Section 4(a)(2) thereof.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities
None
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

None
Item 5. Other Information

None
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Item 6. Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed as part of, or incorporated by reference into, this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Exhibit Number
3.1
3.2

10.1
10.2
10.3
321
32.2
33.1
33.2
101.INS
101.SCH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAB
101.PRE

* Filed herewith.

Exhibit Description Form
Certificate of Incorporation of SpringBig Holdings, Inc. 10-K
By-Laws of SpringBig Holdings, Inc. 10-K

Settlement Agreement, dated September 7, 2023, by and between Yuzz Buzz, LL.C, Jason Wright, and
Michael Gross, on the one hand, and SpringBig, Inc., Medici Holdings V, Inc. (f/k/a SpringBig, Inc.),
SpringBig Holdings, Inc. and Jeffrey Harris, on the other hand. 8-K

Cedar Agreement

Agile Agreement
Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Ce ation of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

** Furnished herewith.
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31
3.2

10.1

Filing Date
March 28, 2023
March 28, 2023

September 13, 2023

Filed/Furnished
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto
duly authorized.

SpringBig Holdings, Inc

By: /s/ Jeffrey Harris
Name: Jeffrey Harris
Title: Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
Date: November 13, 2023
By: /s/ Paul Sykes
Name: Paul Sykes
Title: Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)
Date: November 13, 2023
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CEDAR ADVANCE LLC
5401 Collins Avenue CU-9A
Miami Beach, FL 33140 (786) 490-7809
reconciliations@cedaradvance.com

STANDARD MERCHANT CASH ADVANCE AGREEMENT

This is an Agreement dated 07/25/2023 by and between CEDAR ADVANCE LLC ("CEDAR?), inclusive
of its successors and assigns, and each merchant listed below (“Merchant”).
Merchant's Legal Name: SPRINGBIG HOLDINGS ING / SPRINGBIG INC

D/B/AJ: SPRING BIG Fed |D # 83-2789488 / 82-3542951

Type of Entity: # _ Corporation _[] _Limited Liability Company _[J _Partnership _[J _Sole Proprietorship
Business Address: 621 NW 53RD STREET City: BOCARATON State: FL Zip: 33487
Contact Address: 621 NW 53RD STREET City: BOCARATON State: FL Zip: 33487
E-mail Address: Phone Number:

Purchase Price

This is the amount being paid to Merchant(s) for the Receivables Purchased Amount
(defined beiow). This amount may be paid in installments if there is an Addendum Stating | $ 1,042,000.00
that it will be paid in instaliments.

Receivables Purchased Amount
This is the amount of Receivables (defined in Section 1 below) being sold. This amount | $ 1.396.280.00
may be soid in installments if there is an Addendum stating that it will be soid in
|_installments.

Specified Percentage
This is the percentage of Receivables (defined below) to be deliversd until the
Receivables Purchased Amount is paid in full. 15 %

Net Funds Provided

This is the net amount being paid to or on behalf of Merchani(s) after deduction of
applicable fees listed in Section 2 below. This amount may be paid in instaliments if there
is an Addendum stating that it will be paid in installments, $ 1,000,000.00

Net Amount to Be Received Directly by Merchant(s)

This is the net amount being received directly by Merchant(s) after deduction of applicable
fees listed in Section 2 below and the payment of any part of the Purchase Price
elsewhere pursuant to any Addendum to this Agreement. This amount may be paid in
instaliments if there is an Addendum stating that it will be paid in installments. If any
deduction is being made from the Purchase Price to pay off another obligation by
Merchant(s), then the Net Amount to be Received Directly by Merchant(s) is subject to
change based on any change in the amount of the other obligation(s) to be paid off. $ 1,000,000.00

Initial Estimated Payment

This is the initial amount of periodic payments collected from Merchant(s) as an
approximation of no more than the Specified Perceniage of the Receivables and is | § 0.891.00
Subject to reconciliation as set forth in Section 4 below.

per WEEK

Harns
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STANDARD MERCHANT CASH ADVANCE AGREEMENT

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Sale of Future Receipts. Merchant(s) hereby sell, assign, and transfer to CEDAR (making CEDAR the absolute
owner) in consideration of the funds provided (“Purchase Price”) specified above, all of each Merchant's future accounts,
contract rights, and other obligations arising from or relating to the payment of monies from each Merchant's customers
and/or other third party payors (the “Receivables”, defined as all payments made by cash, check, credit or debit card,
electronic transfer, or other form of monetary payment in the ordinary course of each merchant's business), for the payment
of each Merchant's sale of goods or services until the amount specified above (the “Receivables Purchased Amount”) has
been delivered by Merchant(s) to CEDAR. Each Merchant hereby acknowledges that until the Receivables Purchased
Amount has been received in full by CEDAR, each Merchant's Receivables, up to the balance of the Receivables Purchased
Amount, are the property of CEDAR and not the property of any Merchant. Each Merchant agrees that it is a fiduciary for
CEDAR and that each Merchant will hold Receivables in trust for CEDAR in its capacity as a fiduciary for CEDAR.

The Receivables Purchased Amount shall be paid to CEDAR by each Merchant irrevocably authorizing only one
depositing account acceptable to CEDAR (the “Account”) to remit the percentage specified above (the “Specified
Percentage”) of each Merchant's settiement amounts due from each transaction, until such time as CEDAR receives
payment in full of the Receivables Purchased Amount. Each Merchant hereby authorizes CEDAR to ACH debit the specified
remittances and any applicable fees listed in Section 2 from the Account on a daily basis as of the next business day after
the date of this Agreement and will provide CEDAR with all required access codes and monthly bank statements. Each
Merchant understands that it will be held responsible for any fees resulting from a rejected ACH attempt or an Event of
Defauilt (see Section 2). CEDAR is not responsible for any overdrafts or rejected transactions that may result from CEDAR's
ACH debiting the Specified Percentage amounts under the terms of this Agreement. Each Merchant acknowledges and
agrees that until the amount of the Receivables collected by CEDAR exceeds the amount of the Purchase Price, CEDAR
will be permitted not treat any amount collected under this Agreement as profit for taxation and accounting purposes.

2. Additional Fees. In addition to the Receivables Purchased Amount, each Merchant will be held responsible to
CEDAR for the following fees, where applicable:

A, $ 52,650.00 - to cover underwriting, the ACH debit program, and expenses related to the procurement and
initiation of the transactions encompassed by this Agreement. This will be deducted from payment of the Purchase Price.

B. Wire Fee - Merchant(s} shall receive funding electronically to the Account and will be charged $50.00 for a Fed
Wire or $0.00 for a bank ACH. This will be deducted from payment of the Purchase Price.

C. NSF/Rejected ACH Fee - $50.00 for each time an ACH debit to the Account by CEDAR is returned or otherwise
rejected. No Merchant will be held responsible for such a fee if any Merchant gives CEDAR notice no more than one
business day in advance that the Account will have insufficient funds to be debited by CEDAR and no Merchant is otherwise
in default of the terms of the Agreement. Each such fee may be deducted from any payment collected by CEDAR or may
be collected in addition to any other payment collected by CEDAR under this Agreement.

D. Blocked Account/Default - $2,500.00 - If an Event of Default has taken place under Section 30.

E. UCC Fee - $195.00 - to cover CEDAR filing a UCC-1 financing statement to secure its interest in the Receivables
Purchased Amount. A $195.00 UCC termination fee will be charged if a UCC filing is terminated.

F.§ - legal compliance with applicable disclosure laws and regulations. This will be deducted from
payment of the Purchase Price.

G. Court costs, arbitration fees, collection agency fees, attorney fees, expert fees, and any other expenses incurred
in litigation, arbitration, or the enforcement of any of CEDAR's legal or contractual rights against each Merchant and/or each
Guarantor, if required, as explained in other Sections of this Agreement.

3. Estimated Payments. Instead of debiting the Specified Percentage of Merchant's Receivables, CEDAR may
instead debit $ 42.891.00 (“Estimated Payment”) from the Account every WEEK - The Estimated Payment
is intended to be an approximation of no more than the Specified Percentage, subject to reconciliation.

4. Reconciliations. Any Merchant may contact CEDAR's Reconciliation Department to request that CEDAR
conduct a reconciliation in order to ensure that the amount that CEDAR has collected equals the Specified Percentage of
Merchant(s)'s Receivables under this Agreement. A request for a reconciliation by any Merchant must be made by giving
written notice of the request to CEDAR or by sending an e-mail to reconciliations@cedaradvance.com stating that a
reconciliation is being requested. In order to effectuate the recanciliation, any Merchant must produce with its request any

I have read ageee to the terms and conditions set forth above:
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STANDARD MERCHANT CASH ADVANCE AGREEMENT

telephone is answered, whether answered by an Owner, a Guarantor, or someone else. These messages may also be
recorded by the recipient's answering machine or voice mail. Each Merchant, each Owner, and each Guarantor gives
CEDAR permission to call or send a text message to any telephone number given to CEDAR in connection with this
Agreement and to play pre-recorded messages and/or send text messages with information about this Agreement and/or
any Merchant's account over the phone. Each Merchant, each Owner, and each Guarantor also gives CEDAR permission
to communicate such information to them by e-mail. Each Merchant, each Owner, and each Guarantor agree that CEDAR
will not be liable to any of them for any such calls or electronic communications, even if information is communicated to an
unintended recipient. Each Merchant, each Owner, and each Guarantor acknowledge that when they receive such calls or
electronic communications, they may incur a charge from the company that provides them with telecommunications,
wireless, and/or Internet services, and that CEDAR has no liability for any such charges.

10. Accuracy of Information Furnished by Merchant and Investigation Thereof. To the extent set forth herein,
each of the parties is obligated upon his, her, or its execution of the Agreement to all terms of the Agreement. Each Merchant
and each Owner signing this Agreement represent that he or she is authorized to sign this Agreement for each Merchant,
legally binding said Merchant to its obligations under this Agreement and that the information provided herein and in all of
CEDAR's documents, forms, and recorded interview(s) is true, accurate, and complete in all respects. CEDAR may produce
a monthly statement reflecting the delivery of the Specified Percentage of Receivables from Merchant(s) to CEDAR. An
investigative report may be made in connection with the Agreement. Each Merchant and each Owner signing this Agreement
authorize CEDAR, its agents and representatives, and any credit-reporting agency engaged by CEDAR, to (i) investigate
any references given or any other statements obtained from or about each Merchant or any of its Owners for the purpose
of this Agreement, and (ji) pull credit report at any time now or for so long as any Merchant and/or Owners(s) continue to
have any obligation to CEDAR under this Agreement or for CEDAR'’s ability to determine any Merchant's eligibility to enter
into any future agreement with CEDAR. Any misrepresentation made by any Merchant or Owner in connection with this
Agreement may constitute a separate claim for fraud or intentional misrepresentation.

Authorization for soft pulls: Each Merchant and each Owner understands that by signing this Agreement, they are
providing ‘written instructions’ to CEDAR under the Fair Credit Reporting Act, authorizing GEDAR to obtain information from
their personal credit profile or other information from Experian, TransUnion, and Equifax. Each Merchant and each
Guarantor authorizes CEDAR to obtain such information solely to conduct a pre-qualification for credit.

Authorization for hard pulls: Each Merchant and each Owner understands that by signing this Agreement, they are
providing ‘written instructions’ to CEDAR under the Fair Credit Reporting Act, authorizing CEDAR to obtain information from
their personal credit profile or other information from Experian, TransUnion, and Equifax. Each Merchant and each
Guarantor authorizes CEDAR to obtain such information in accordance with a merchant cash advance application.

11. Transactional History. Each Merchant authorizes its bank to provide CEDAR with its banking and/or credit
card processing history.

12. Indemnification. Each Merchant and each Guarantor jointly and severally indemnify and hold harmless each
Merchant's credit card and check processors (collectively, “Processor’) and Processor's officers, directors, and
shareholders against all losses, damages, claims, liabilities, and expenses (including reasonable attorney and expert fees)
incurred by Processor resulting from (a) claims asserted by CEDAR for monies owed to CEDAR from any Merchant and (b)
actions taken by any Processor in reliance upan information or instructions provided by CEDAR.

13. No Liability. In no event will CEDAR be liable for any claims asserted by any Merchant under any legal theory
for lost profits, lost revenues, lost business opportunities, exemplary, punitive, special, incidental, indirect, or consequential
damages, each of which is waived by each Merchant and each Guarantor.

14. Sale of Receivables. Each Merchant and CEDAR agree that the Purchase Price under this Agreement is in
exchange for the Receivables Purchased Amount and that such Purchase Price is not intended to be, nor shall it be
construed as a loan from CEDAR to any Merchant. CEDAR is entering into this Agreement knowing the risks that each
Merchant’s business may decline or fail, resulting in CEDAR not receiving the Receivables Purchased Amount. Any
Merchant going bankrupt, going out of business, or experiencing a slowdown in business or a delay in collecting Receivables
will not on its own without anything more be considered a breach of this Agreement. Each Merchant agrees that the
Purchase Price in exchange for the Receivables pursuant to this Agreement equals the fair market value of such
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STANDARD MERCHANT CASH ADVANCE AGREEMENT

Receivables. CEDAR has purchased and shall own all the Receivables described in this Agreement up to the full
Receivables Purchased Amount as the Receivables are created. Payments made to CEDAR in respect to the full amount
of the Receivables shall be conditioned upon each Merchant's sale of products and services and the payment therefor by
each Merchant's customers in the manner provided in this Agreement. Each Merchant and each Guarantor acknowledges
that CEDAR does not purchase, sell, or offer to purchase or sell securities and that this Agreement is not a security, an offer
to sell any security, or a solicitation of an offer to buy any security. Although certain jurisdictions require the disclosure of an
Annual Percentage Rate or APR in connection with this Agreement, those disclosures do not change the fact that the
transaction encompassed by this Agreement is not a loan and does not have an interest rate.

15. Power of Attorney. Each Merchant irrevocably appoints CEDAR as its agent and attorney-in-fact with full
authority to take any action or execute any instrument or document to settle all obligations due to CEDAR for the benefit of
each Merchant and only in order to prevent the occurrence of an Event of Default {(as described in Section 30). If an Event
of Default takes place under Section 30, then each Merchant irrevocably appoints CEDAR as its agent and attorney-in-fact
with full authority to take any action or execute any instrument or document to settle all obligations due to CEDAR from
each Merchant, including without limitation (i) to collect monies due or to become due under or in respect of any of the
Collateral (which is defined in Section 29); (i} to receive, endorse and collect any checks, notes, drafts, instruments,
documents, or chattel paper in connection with clause (i) above; (ii) to sign each Merchant's name on any invoice, bill of
lading, or assignment directing customers or account debtors to make payment directly to CEDAR: and {iv) to file any claims
or take any action or institute any proceeding which CEDAR may deem necessary for the collection of any of the unpaid
Receivables Purchased Amount from the Collateral, or otherwise to enforce its rights with respect to payment of the
Receivables Purchased Amount.

16. Protections Against Default. The following Protections 1 through 6 may be invoked by CEDAR, immediately
and without notice to any Merchant if any Event of Default listed in Section 30 has occurred,

Protection 1: The full uncollected Receivables Purchased Amount pius all fees due under this Agreement may
become due and payable in full immediately.

Protection 2. CEDAR may enforce the provisions of the Guarantee against Guarantor.

Protection 3. CEDAR may enforce its security interest in the Collateral identified in Section 29.

Protection 4. CEDAR may proceed to protect and enforce its rights and remedies by litigation or arbitration.

Protection 5. CEDAR may debit any Merchant's depository accounts wherever situated by means of ACH debit or
electronic or facsimile signature on a computer-generated check drawn on any Merchant's bank account or otherwise, in
an amount consistent with the terms of this Agreement.

Protection 6. CEDAR will have the right, without waiving any of its rights and remedies and without notice to any
Merchant and/or Guarantor, to notify each Merchant's credit card and/or check processor and account debtor(s) of the sale
of Receivables hereunder and to direct such credit card processor and account debtor(s) to make payment to CEDAR of all
or any portion of the amounts received by such credit card processor and account debtor(s) on behalf of each Merchant.
Each Merchant hereby grants to CEDAR an irrevocable power-of-attorney, which power-of-attorney will be coupled with an
interest, and hereby appoints CEDAR and its representatives as each Merchant's attorney-in-fact to take any and all action
necessary to direct such new or additional credit card and/or check processor and account debtor(s) to make payment to
CEDAR as contemplated by this Section.

17. Protection of Information. Each Merchant and each person signing this Agreement on behalf of each Merchant
and/or as Owner, in respect of himseif or herself personally, authorizes CEDAR to disclose information concerning each
Merchant, Owner and/or Guarantor's credit standing and business conduct to agents, affiliates, subsidiaries, and credit
reporting bureaus. Each Merchant, Guarantor, and Owner hereby waives to the maximum extent permitted by law any claim
for damages against CEDAR or any of its affiliates relating to any (i) investigation undertaken by or on behalf of CEDAR as
permitted by this Agreement or (i) disclosure of information as permitted by this Agreement.

18. Confidentiality. Each Merchant understands and agrees that the terms and conditions of the products and
services offered by CEDAR, including this Agreement and any other CEDAR documents {collectively, “Confidential
Information") are proprietary and confidential information of CEDAR. Accordingly, unless disclosure is required by law or
court order, Merchant(s) shall not disciose Confidential Information of CEDAR to any person other than an attorney,
accountant, financial advisor, or employee of any Merchant who needs to know such information for the purpose of advising

Bamis

PLINS L PP Prea

| have read [mf' to the terms and conditions set forth above:

Name: JEFFREY TODD HARRIS Title: Date: o7zsez023




STANDARD MERCHANT CASH ADVANCE AGREEMENT

any Merchant (‘Advisor”), provided such Advisor uses such information solely for the purpose of advising any Merchant and
first agrees in writing to be bound by the terms of this Section 18.

19. D/BI/As. Each Merchant hereby acknowledges and agrees that CEDAR may be using “doing business as” or
‘d/b/a” names in connection with various matters relating to the transaction between CEDAR and each Merchant, including
the filing of UCC-1 financing statements and other notices or filings.

20. Financial Condition and Financial Information. Each Merchant represents, warrants, and covenants that its
bank and financial statements, copies of which have been fumished to CEDAR, and future statements which will be
furnished hereafter at the request of CEDAR, fairly represent the financial condition of each Merchant at such dates, and
that since those dates there have been no material adverse changes, financial or otherwise, in such condition, operation,
or ownership of any Merchant. Each Merchant has a continuing affirmative obligation to advise CEDAR of any material
adverse change in its financial condition, operation, or ownership that may have an effect on any Merchant's ability to
generate Receivables or perform its obligations under this Agreement.

21. Governmental Approvals. Each Merchant represents, warrants, and covenants that it is in compliance and
shall comply with all laws and has valid permits, authorizations, and licenses to own, operate, and lease its properties and
to conduct the business in which it is presently engaged.

22. Authorization. Each Merchant represents, warrants, and covenants that it and each person signing this
Agreement on behalf of each Merchant has full power and authority to incur and perform the obligations under this
Agreement, all of which have been duly authorized.

23. Electronic Check Processing Agreement. Each Merchant represents, warrants, and covenants that it will not,
without CEDAR's prior written consent, change its Processor, add terminals, change its financial institution or bank account,
or take any other action that could have any adverse effect upon any Merchant’s obligations under this Agreement.

24. Change of Name or Location. Each Merchant represents, warrants, and covenants that it will not conduct its
business under any name other than as disclosed to CEDAR or change any place(s) of its business without giving prior
written notice to CEDAR.

25. No Bankruptey, Each Merchant represents, warrants, and covenants that as of the date of this Agreement, it
does not contemplate and has not filed any petition for bankruptcy protection under Title 11 of the United States Code and
there has been no involuntary petition brought or pending against any Merchant. Each Merchant further warrants that it
does not anticipate filing any such bankruptcy petition and it does not anticipate that an involuntary petition will be filed
against it.

26. Unencumbered Receivables. Other than L1 Capital Global Inc Each Merchant represents, warrants, and
covenants that it has good, complete, and marketable title to all Receivables, free and clear of any and all liabilities, liens,
claims, changes, restrictions, conditions, options, rights, mortgages, security interests, equities, pledges, and encumbrances
of any kind or nature whatsoever or any other rights or interests that may be inconsistent with this Agreement or adverse to
the interests of CEDAR, other than any for which CEDAR has actual or constructive knowledge or inquiry notice as of the
date of this Agreement. -

27. Stacking. Each Merchant represents, warrants, and covenants that it will not enter into with any party other
than CEDAR any arrangement, agreement, or commitment that relates to or involves the Receivables, whether in the form
of a purchase of, a loan against, collateral against, or the sale or purchase of credits against Receivables without the prior
written consent of CEDAR.

28. Business Purpose, Each Merchant represents, warrants, and covenants that it is a valid business in good
standing under the laws of the jurisdictions in which it is organized and/or operates, and each Merchant is entering into this
Agreement for business purposes and not as a consumer for personal, family, or household purposes.

Karns
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STANDARD MERCHANT CASH ADVANCE AGREEMENT

29. Security Interest. in the Event of Default, to secure each Merchant's performance obligations to CEDAR
under this Agreement and any future agreement with CEDAR, each Merchant hereby grants to CEDAR a security interest in
collateral (the “Collateral”), that is defined as collectively: (a) all accounts, including without limitation, all deposit accounts,
accounts-receivable, and other receivables, as those terms are defined by Article 9 of the Uniform Commercial Code (the
‘UCC’), now or hereafter owned or acquired by any Merchant, and (b) all proceeds, as that term is defined by Article 9
of the UCC. The parties acknowledge and agree that any security interest granted to CEDAR under any other agreement
between any Merchant or Guarantor and CEDAR (the "Cross-Collateral”) will secure the obligations hereunder and under
this Agreement. Negative Pledge: Each Merchant agrees not to create, incur, assume, or permit to exist, directly or
indirectly, any lien on or with respect to any of the Collateral or the Cross-Collateral, as applicable.

Each Merchant agrees to execute any documents or take any action in connection with this Agreement as CEDAR
deems necessary to perfect or maintain CEDAR's first priority security interest in the Collateral and the Cross-Collateral,
including the execution of any account control agreements. Each Merchant hereby authorizes CEDAR to file any financing
statements deemed necessary by CEDAR to perfect or maintain CEDAR’s security interest, which financing statements
may contain notification that each Merchant has granted a negative piedge to CEDAR with respect to the Collateral and the
Cross-Collateral, and that any subsequent lienor may be tortiously interfering with CEDAR’s rights. Each Merchant shall be
liable for and CEDAR may charge and collect all costs and expenses, including but not limited to attorney fees, which may
be incurred by CEDAR in protecting, preserving, and enforcing CEDAR's security interest and rights. Each Merchant further
acknowledges that CEDAR may use another legal name and/or D/B/A or an agent when designating the Secured Party
when CEDAR files the above-referenced financing statement(s).

30. Events of Defauit. An “Event of Default” may be considered to have taken place if any of the following occur:

(1) Any representation or warranty by any Merchant to CEDAR proves to have been made intentionally false or
misleading in any material respect when made;

(2) Any Merchant causes any ACH debit to the Account by CEDAR to be blocked or stopped without providing any
advance written notice to CEDAR with an alternative method for CEDAR to collect the blocked or stopped payment, which
notice may be given by e-mail to reconciliations@cedaradvance.com:

(3) Any Merchant intentionally prevents CEDAR from collecting any part of the Receivables Purchased Amount: or

(4) Any Merchant causes any ACH debit to the Account by any person or entity other than CEDAR to be stopped
or otherwise returned that would resuit in an ACH Return Code of R08, R10, or R29 and that Merchant does not within two
business days thereafter provide CEDAR with written notice thereof explaining why that Merchant caused the ACH debit to
be stopped or otherwise returned, which notice may be given by e-mail to reconciliations@cedaradvance.com.

31. Remedies. In case any Event of Default occurs and is not waived, CEDAR may proceed to protect and enforce
its rights or remedies by suit in equity or by action at law, or both, whether for the specific performance of any covenant,
agreement, or other provision contained herein, or to enforce the discharge of each Merchant's obligations hereunder, or
any other legal or equitable right or remedy. All rights, powers, and remedies of CEDAR in connection with this Agreement,
including each Protection listed in Section 16, may be exercised at any time by CEDAR after the occurrence of an Event of
Default, are cumulative and not exclusive, and will be in addition to any other rights, powers, or remedies provided by law
or equity. In case any Event of Default occurs and is not waived, CEDAR may elect that Merchant(s) be required to pay to
CEDAR 25% of the unpaid balance of the Receivables Purchased Amount as liquidated damages for any reasonable
expenses incurred by CEDAR in connection with recovering the unpaid balance of the Receivables Purchased Amount
(“Reasonable Expenses”) and all Merchant(s) and all Guarantor(s) agree that the Reasonable Expenses bear a reasonable
relationship to CEDAR's actual expenses incurred in connection with recovering the unpaid balance of the Receivables
Purchased Amount.

32. Assignment. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns, except that Merchant(s) shall not have the right to assign its rights hereunder or any interest herein
without the prior written consent of CEDAR, which consent may be withheld in CEDAR’s sole discretion. CEDAR may
assign, transfer, or sell its rights under this Agreement, including, without limitation, its rights to receive the Receivables
Purchased Amount, and its rights under Section 29 of this Agreement, the Guarantee, and any other agreement, instrument,
or document executed in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (a “Related Agreement”), or
delegate its duties hereunder or thereunder, either in whole or in part. From and after the effective date of any such
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assignment or transfer by CEDAR, whether or not any Merchant has actual notice thereof, this Agreement and each Related
Agreement shall be deemed amended and modified {without the need for any further action on the part of any Merchant or
CEDAR]) such that the assignee shall be deemed 3 party fo this Agreement and any such Related Agreement and, to the
extent provided in the assignment document between CEDAR and such assignee (the “"Assignment Agreement”), have the
rights and obligations of CEDAR under this Agreement and such Related Agreements with respect to the portion of the
Receivables Purchased Amount set forth in such Assignment Agreement, including but not limited to rights in the
Receivables, Collateral and Additional Collateral , the benefit of each Guarantor's guaranty regarding the full and prompt
performance of every obligation that is a subject of the Guarantee, CEDAR's rights under Section 16 of this Agreement
(Protections Against Default), and to receive damages from any Merchant following a breach of this Agreement by any
Merchant. In connection with such assignment, CEDAR may disclose all information that CEDAR has relating to any
Merchant or its business. Fach Merchant agrees to acknowledge any such assignment in writing upon CEDAR’s request.

33. Notices. All notices, requests, consents, demands, and other communications hereunder shall be delivered by
certified mail, return receipt requested. or by overnight delivery with signature confirmation to the respective parties to this
Agreement at their addresses set forth in this Agreement and shall become effective only upon receipt. Written notice may
also be given to any Merchant or Guarantor by e-mail to the E-mail Address listed on the first page of this Agreement or by
text message to the Phone Number listed on the first page of this Agreement if that phone number is for a mobile phone.
Each Merchant and each Guarantor must set its spam or junk mail filter to accept e-mails sent by
reconciliations@cedaradvance.com and its domain. This Section is not applicable to service of process or notices in any
legal proceedings.

34. Choice of Law. Each Merchant acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement was made in the State of Florida,
that the Purchase Price is being paid by CEDAR in the State of Florida, that the Receivables Purchased Amount is being
delivered to CEDAR in the State of Florida, and that the State of Florida has a reasonable relationship to the transactions
encompassed by this Agreement. This Agreement, any dispute or claim relating hereto, whether sounding in contract, tort,
law, equity, or otherwise, the relationship between CEDAR and each Merchant, and the relationship between CEDAR and
each Guarantor will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida, without regard to any
applicable principles of conflict of laws. Each Merchant represents that it does not have a principal place of business located
in the Commonwealth of Virginia and that therefore the provisions of Chapter 22.1 of Title 6.2 of the Virginia Code are not
applicable to this Agreement. Each Merchant agrees that the provisions of Division 9.5 of the California Financial Code are
not appiicable to this Agreement if no Business Address listed on the first page of this Agreement or in any addendum
hereto is located in the State of California.

35. Venue and Forum Selection. This Agreement, and any dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the
parties’ relationship, shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida, without regard
to any applicable principles of conflicts of law. Any suit, action, or proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement or
the transaction contemplated herein or the interpretation, performance, or breach hereof shali be instituted in any state
court sitting in the State of Florida (the “Acceptable Forums”), provided that CEDAR may institute suit in another forum.
Merchant, each Guarantor and each Owner agree that the Acceptable Forums are convenient to them, and submit to the
personal jurisdiction of the Acceptable Forums and waive any and all objections to jurisdiction or venue in the Acceptable
Forums. Should a proceeding be initiated by Merchant, any Guarantor or any Owner in any other forum, Merchant, each
Guarantor and each Owner waives any right to oppose any motion or application made by CEDAR to dismiss such
proceeding, to remove and/or transfer the proceeding to an Acceptable Forum, and for an anti-suit injunction against such
proceeding (which CEDAR may make in the Acceptable Forums). ADDITIONALLY, MERCHANT, EACH OWNER AND
EACH GUARANTOR WAIVE PERSONAL SERVICE OF ANY SUMMONS AND/OR COMPLAINT OR OTHER PROCESS

38. Jury Waiver. The parties agree to waive trial by jury in any dispute between them.

| have rea o the terms and conditions set forth above:
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37. Counterclaim Waiver. In any litigation or arbitration commenced by CEDAR, each Merchant and each
Guarantor will not be permitted to interpose any counterclaim,

38. Statutes of Limitations. Each Merchant and each Guarantor agree that any claim, whether sounding in
contract, tort, law, equity, or otherwise, that is not asserted against CEDAR within one year after its accrual will be time
barred. Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the contrary, each Merchant and each Guarantor agree that any
objection by any of them to the jurisdiction of an arbitrator or to the arbitrability of the dispute and any application made by
any of them to stay an arbitration initiated against any of them by CEDAR will be time barred if made more than 20 days
after receipt of the demand for arbitration.

39. Costs and Legal Fees. If an Event of Default occurs or CEDAR prevails in any litigation or arbitration with any
Merchant or any Guarantor, then each Merchant and each Guarantor must pay CEDAR's reasonable attorney fees, which
may include a contingency fee of up to 40% of the amount claimed, as well as administrative or filing fees and arbitrator
compensation in any arbitration, expert witness fees, and costs of suit.

40. Prejudgment and Postiudgment Interest. If CEDAR becomes entitled to the entry of a judgment against any
Merchant or any Guarantor, then CEDAR will be entitled to the recovery of prejudgment interest at a rate of 24% per annum

(or 16% per annum if any Merchant is a sole proprietorship), or the maximum rate permitted by applicable law if less, and
upon entry of any such judgment, it will accrue interest ata postjudgment rate of 24% per annum (or 16% per annum if any
Merchant is a sole proprietorship), or the maximum rate permitted by applicable law if less, which rate will govern over the
statutory rate of interest up until actual satisfaction of the judgment.

41. Class Action Waiver. CEDAR, each Merchant, and each Guarantor agree that they may bring claims against
each other relating to this Agreement only in their individual capacities, and not as a plaintiff or class action member in any
purported class or representative proceedings.

42. Arbitration. CEDAR HAS THE RIGHT TO REQUEST THAT ANY DISPUTE, CONTROVERSY OR CLAIM
BETWEEN CEDAR AND MERCHANT, ANY GUARANTOR OR ANY OWNER, WHETHER ARISING OUT OF OR
RELATING TO THE CONSTRUCTION AND INTERPRETATION OF THIS AGREEMENT OR OTHERWISE (INCLUDING
WITHOUT LIMITATION CLAIMS FOR FRAUD, MISREPRESENTATION, INTENTIONAL TORT, NEGLIGENT TORT OR
UNDER ANY LOCAL, STATE OR FEDERAL STATUTE OR RULE), BE SUBMITTED TO ARBITRATION BEFORE EITHER
(1) THE AMERICAN ARBITRATION ASSOCIATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH ITS COMMERCIAL RULES, OR (Il
MEDIATION AND CIVIL ARBITRATION INC. D/B/A RAPIDRULING (WWW.RAPIDRULING.COM) IN ACCORDANCE
WITH ITS COMMERCIAL ARBITRATION RULES. THE ARBITRATION SHALL BE GOVERNED BY THE FEDERAL
ARBITRATION ACT. THE ARBITRATION SHALL BE DEEMED TO BE LOCATED IN MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA,
REGARDLESS OF THE LOCATION OF THE PARTIES OR ARBITRATOR. TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY THE
ARBITRATOR RULES, THE ARBITRATION PROCEEDINGS SHALL PROCEED VIRTUALLY OR REMOTELY AND
SHALL NOT REQUIRE THE PARTIES TO APPEAR IN-PERSON. ALL QUESTIONS CONCERNING ARBITRATRABILITY
OF ANY DISPUTE SHALL BE DECIDED BY THE ARBITRATOR. CEDAR MAY DEMAND THAT SUCH DISPUTE BE
SUBMITTED TO ARBITRATION EITHER BY (l) SENDING A WRITTEN NOTICE OF INTENT TO ARBITRATE TO ALL
OTHER PARTIES IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE NOTICE PROVISION IN PARAGRAPH 33 OF THIS AGREEMENT, OR
(I1) SENDING A WRITTEN NOTICE OF INTENT TO ARBITRATE TO THE ATTORNEY OF RECORD FOR MERCHANT,
ANY GUARANTOR OR ANY OWNER WHO HAS BROUGHT ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING BEFORE ANY COURT
OR TRIBUNAL AGAINST CEDAR. INITIALLY, THE PARTIES WILL SPLIT THE ARBITRATION FILING FEE,
ADMINISTRATION FEE AND ARBITRATOR FEE. IF CEDAR PREVAILS IN ARBITRATION, THE ARBITRATOR MAY
AWARD TO CEDAR ITS ATTORNEYS' FEES (IN ACCORDANCE WITH PARAGRAPH 39 OF THIS AGREEMENT) AND
SHARE OF THE ARBITRATION FILING FEE, ADMINISTRATION FEE AND ARBITRATOR FEE. MERCHANT, ANY
GUARANTOR AND ANY OWNER MAY OPT OUT OF THIS ARBITRATION PROVISION BY SENDING CEDAR A NOTICE
THAT HE, SHE OR IT DOES NOT WANT THIS PROVISION TO APPLY IN ACCORDANCE WITH PARAGRAPH 33
WITHIN 14 DAYS AFTER THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS AGREEMENT.

43. Service of Process. Each Merchant and each Guarantor consent to service of process and legal notices made

| have read andﬁﬁ'&ﬂ“ﬁf tersrns and conditions set forth above:
[ al

ATZEFFS2AMACI4DE..

Name: JEFFREY TODD HARRIS Title: Date: ovi2si2023




STANDARD MERCHANT CASH ADVANCE AGREEMENT

by First Class or Priority Mail delivered by the United States Postal Service and addressed to the Contact Address set forth
on the first page of this Agreement or any other address(es) provided in writing to CEDAR by any Merchant or any
Guarantor, and unless applicable law or rules provide otherwise, any such service will be deemed complete upon dispatch.
Each Merchant and each Guarantor agrees that it will be precluded from asserting that it did not receive service of process
or any other notice mailed to the Contact Address set forth on the first page of this Agreement if it does not furnish a certified
mail return receipt signed by CEDAR demonstrating that CEDAR was provided with notice of a change in the Contact
Address.

44. Survival of Representations, etc. All representations, warranties, and covenants herein shall survive the
execution and delivery of this Agreement and shall continue in full force until ali obligations under this Agreement shall have

been satisfied in full and this Agreement shall have terminated unless specified otherwise in this Agreement.

45, Waiver. No failure on the part of CEDAR to exercise, and no delay in exercising, any right under this Agreement,
shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right under this Agreement preclude any
other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right. The remedies provided hereunder are cumulative and
not exclusive of any remedies provided by law or equity.

46. Independent Sales Organizations/Brokers. Each Merchant and each Guarantor acknowledge that it may

have been introduced to CEDAR by or received assistance in entering into this Agreement or its Guarantee from an
independent sales organization or broker (“ISQ”). Each Merchant and each Guarantor agree that any ISO is separate from
and is not an agent or representative of CEDAR. Each Merchant and each Guarantor acknowledge that CEDAR is not
bound by any promises or agreements made by any 1SO that are not contained within this Agreement. Each Merchant and
each Guarantor exculpate from liability and agree to hold harmless and indemnify CEDAR and its officers, directors,
members, shareholders, employees, and agents from and against all losses, damages, claims, liabilities, and expenses
(including reasonable attorney and expert fees) incurred by any Merchant or any Guarantor resulting from any act or
omission by any ISO. Each Merchant and each Guarantor acknowledge that any fee that they paid to any IS0 for its services
is separate and apart from any payment under this Agreement. Each Merchant and each Guarantor acknowledge that
CEDAR does not in any way require the use of an ISO and that any fees charged by any 1SO are not required as a condition
or incident to this Agreement,

47. Modifications; Agreements. No modification, amendment, waiver, or consent of any provision of this
Agreement shall be effective unless the same shall be in writing and signed by all parties.

48. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is deemed invalid or unenforceable as written, it will be
construed, to the greatest extent possible, in a manner which will render it valid and enforceable, and any limitation on the
scope or duration of any such provision necessary to make it valid and enforceable will be deemed to be part thereof. if any
provision of this Agreement is deemed void, all other provisions will remain in effect.

49, Headings. Headings of the various articles and/or sections of this Agreement are for convenience only and do
not necessarily define, limit, describe, or construe the contents of such articles or sections.

50. Attorney Review. Each Merchant acknowledges that it has had an opportunity to review this Agreement and
all addenda with counsel of its choosing before signing the documents or has chosen not to avail itself of the opportunity to
do so.

51. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, inclusive of all addenda, if any, executed simultaneously herewith
constitutes the full understanding of the parties to the transaction herein and may not be amended, meodified, or canceled
except in writing signed by all parties. Should there arise any conflict between this Agreement and any other document
preceding it, this Agreement will govern. This Agreement does not affect any previous agreement between the parties unless
such an agreement is specifically referenced herein. This Agreement will not be affected by any subsequent agreement
between the parties unless this Agreement is specifically referenced therein.
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Agreement for the Purchase and Sale of Future Receipts

Seller's Legal Name: SPRINGBIG, INC.
DieiA: _SPRINGBIG, INC.

Form of Business Entity: [ ] Corporation; [ ] Limited Liability Company; [] Partnership; [] Limited Parinership; [ ] Limited Liability
Partnership; [ ] Sole Proprietorship; [ ] Other:

Street Address: 621 NW 53RD ST STE 260 City, BOCARATON  gtate:FL zip; 33487
Mailing Address City: State: Zip

Primary Contact; Title: Time in Business: Federal Tax ID: _o2>>+29%2
Purchase Price:gzannonon UM AMOU™ 51 065,000.00

Average Projected Monthly Sales:  $2,644,265.77

Specified Percentage:___15 % (Average Projected Monthly Safes x Specified Percentage / Average Business Days in a Calendar Month)

Initial Weekly Amount: $4096154  Origination Fee: $37.500.00 (14 pe deducted from the Purchase Price)

Payment will be withdrawnevery Tyasday

Account for the Deposit of All Future Receipts: Bank:
Account No:

October 13, 2023

Effective Seller, identified above, hereby sells, assigns and transfers to AGILE CAPITAL FUNDING_LLC {"Buyer” or
"Agiie Capital Funding”} located at 104 E 25th St, Suite 1001, New York. NY 10010 without recourse, the Specified Percentage of the
proceeds of each future sale made by Seller {collectively "Future Receipts™} untif Seller has received the Purchased Amount. “Future
Receipts” includes all payments made by cash, check, ACH or other electronic transfer, credit card, debit card, bank card, charge card
(each such card shall be referred to herein as a "Payment Card") or other form of monetary payment in the ordinary course of Seller's
business. As payment for the Purchased Amount, Buyer will deliver to Seller the Purchase Price, shown above, minus any Origination
Fee shown above. Seller acknowledges that it has no right to repurchase the Purchased Amount from Buyer.

Both parties agree that the obligation of Buyer under this Agreement will not be effective unless and until Buyer has completed its
review of the Seller and has accepted this Agreement by delivering the Purchase Price, minus any Origination Fee. Prior to accepting
this Agreement, Buyer may conduct a processing trial to confirm its access to the Account and the ability to withdraw the Initial Daily
Amount If the processing trial is not completed to the satisfaction of Buyer, Buyer will refund to Seller all funds that were obtained by
Buyer during the processing trial.

Agreement of Selier: By signing below Seller agrees to the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement, including those terms
and conditions on the following pages, and further agrees that this transaction is for business purposes and not for personal, family, or
household purposes.

Seller: SPRINGBIG, INC.

ngresd o by, Paul Suphes (Signature), ts _Authorized Repesentative _(Tite)
[
PALIL SYKES

Name:
Agreed to by: S (Signature), s _Authorized Representative _(Title)

Name:

Buyer. ilg Capital Fundin

Agreed to by: : (Signature), ts__CFO (Title)

Initiais: 1 Agite Capital Funding
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Agreement of Each Seller: Each Seller signing below agrees to the ferms of the Credit Report Authorization below.

Seiler: SPR!NG%: [N%; F
Agreed to By: {Signature);

[

Mg PR SYKEE Authorized Representative  (Title)

1. Delivery of Purchased Amount: Seller must deposit all Future Receipts into the single business banking account specified above,
which may not be used for any personal, family or household purposes {the “Account”) and must instruct Seller's credit card processor,
which must be approved by Buyer (the “Processor”) to deposit ali Payment Card receipts of Seller into the Account. Seller agrees not to
change the Account or add an additional Account without the express written consent of Buyer. Seller authorizes Buyer to debit the
Weekly Amount from the Account each business day by either ACH or electronic check. Seller will provide Buyer with all required
access codes and agrees not to change them without prior written consent from Buyer. Selter will provide an appropriate ACH
authorization to Buyer. Seller understands that it is responsible for either ensuring that the Weekly Amount is available in the Account
each business day or advising Buyer prior to each weekly withdrawal of a shortage of funds. Otherwise, Seller will be responsible for
any fees incurred by Buyer resulting from a rejected electronic check or ACH debit attempt, as set forth on Appendix A. Buyer is not
responsible for any overdrafts or rejected transactions that may result from Buyer's debiting any amount authonized under the terms of
this Agreement. Seller understands that the foregoing ACH authorization is a fundamental condition to induce Buyer to accept the
Agresment. Consequently, such authorization is intended to be irrevocable.

2. Reconciliation and Changes to the Weekly Amount: The Initial Weekly Amount is intended to represent the Specified Percentage
of Seller's weekly Future Receipts. For as long as no Event of Default has occurred, Buyer shall on or about the fifteenth day of each
month reconcile the Seller's Account (*Account Reconciliation™) by either crediting or further debiting the Seller's Account by the
difference between the actual amount debited since the date of the last Account Reconciliation and the Specific Percentage of the
actual Future Receipts collected by the Seller since the date of the last Account Reconciliation. Failure by Buyer to make an Account
Reconciliation at any time for one or more months or portions thereof shall not be deemed as a breach of Buyer's obligation hereunder
and each Account Reconciliation shall be made for the entire period of time since the date of the last Account Reconciliation. Buyer
may, at Buyer's sole discretion as it deems appropriate and upon Seller's request, adjust the amount of the then- applicable Weekly
Amount due under this Agreemeni in order to cause such Weekly Amount to more accurately reflect an amount which will reduce the
need to credit Seller’s account on a consistently recurring basis.

3. Weekly Amount Upon Default. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the Weekly Amount shall equal 100% of all Future
Receipts.
4. Sale of Future Receipts (THIS IS NOT A LOAN): Seller is selling a portion of a future revenue stream to Buyer at a discount, not

borrowing money from Buyer. There is no interest rate or payment schedule and no time period during which the Purchased Amount
must be collected by Buyer. If Future Receipts are remitted more slowly than Buyer may have anticipated or projected because Seller's
business has slowed down, or if the full Purchased Amount is never remitted because Seller's business went bankrupt or otherwise
ceased operations in the ordinary course of business, and Seller has not breached this Agreement, Seller would not ows anything to
Buyer and would not be in breach of or default under this Agreement. Buyer is buying the Purchased Amount of Future Receipts
knowing the risks that Seller's business may slow down or fail, and Buyer assumes these risks based on Seller's representations,
warranties and covenants in this Agreement that are designed to give Buyer a reasonable and fair opportunity to receive the benefit of
its bargain. By this Agreement, Seller transfers to Buver full and complete ownershig of the Purchased Amount of Future Receipts and
Seller retains no legal or equitable interest therein. Seller agrees that it will treat Purchase Price and Purchased Amount in a mannar
consistent with a sale in its accounting records and tax returns. Seller agrees that Buyer is entitied to audit Seller's accounting records
upon reasonable Notice in order to verify compliance. Seller waives any rights of privacy, confidentiality or tax payer privilege in any
such litigation or arbitration in which Seller asserts that this transaction is anything other than a sale of future receipts.

)
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5. Power of Attorney Seller irrevocably appeints Buyer as its agent and attormey-in-fact with full authority to take any action or execute
any instrument or document to settle all obligations due to Buyer from Seller, or in the case of a violation by Seller of this Agreement or
the occurrence of an Event of Default under Section 15 hereof by Seller, including without limitation (i) to obtain and adjust insurance; (i)
to collect menies due or to become due under or in respect of any of the Future Receipts; (il) to receive, endorse and collect any
checks, notes, drafts, instruments, documents or chattel paper in connection with clause (i) or clause (i) above; (V) to sign Seller's
name on any invoice, bill of lading, or assignment directing customers or account debtors to direct payables to Buyer; (v} to file any
claims or take any action or institute any proceeding which Buyer may deem necessary for the collection of any of the remaining
Purchased Amount of the Future Receipts, or otherwise to enforce its rights with respect to delivery of the Purchased Amount; andfor
(vi) to contact any Processor of Seller and to direct such Processor(s) to deliver directly to Buyer all or any portion of the amounts
received by such Processor(s) and to provide any information regarding Seller requested by Buyer. Each Processor may rely on the
previous sentence as written authorization of Seller to provide any information requested by Buyer. Each Processor is hereby
irrevocably authorized and directed by Seller to follow any instruction of Buyer without inquiry as to Buyer's right or authority to give
such instructions. Seller acknowledges the terms of the preceding sentence and agrees not to (a) interfere with Buyer's instructions or a
Processor's compliance with this Agreement or (b) request any modification thereto without Buyer's prior written consent.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the power of attorney shall only be effected thirty (30) days after an Event of Default
under this Agreement.

6. Fees and Charges: Other than the Origination Fee, if any, set forth above, Buyer is NOT CHARGING ANY ORIGINATION OR
BROKER FEES to Seller. If Seller is charged another such fee, it is not being charged by Buyer. A list of all fees and charges applicable
under this Agreement is contained in Appendix A

7. Credit Report and Other Authorizations: Seller and each of the Owners signing above authorize Buyer, its agents and
representatives and any credit reporting agency engaged by Buyer, to (i) investigate any references given or any other statements or
data obtained from or about Seller or any of its Owners for the purpose of this Agreement, (i) obtain consumer and business credit
reparts on the Seller and any of its Owners, and (jii} to contact personal and business references provided by the Seller in the
Application, at any time now or for so long as Seller and/or Owners continue to have any obligation owed to Buyer as a consequence of
this Agreement or for Buyer's ability to determine Seller's eligibility to enter into any future agreement with Buyer.

8. Autherization to Contact Current and Prior Banks: Seller hereby authorizes Buyer to contact any current or prior bank of the
Seller in order to obtain whatever information it may require regarding Seller's transactions with any such bank. Such information may
include but is not limited to, information necessary to verify the amount of Future Receipts previously processed on behalf of Seller and
any fees that may have been charged by the bank. In addition, Seller authorizes Buyer to contact any current or prior bank of the Sellar
for collections and in order to confirm that Seller is exclusively using the Account identified above, or any other account approved by
Buyer, for the deposit of all business receipts.

9. Financial Information. Seller authorizes Buyer and its agents to investigate its financial responsibility and history, and will provide
to Buyer any authorizations, bank or financial statements, tax returns, etc., as Buyer deems necessary in its sole discretion prior to or at
any time after execution of this Agreement, A photocopy of this authorization will be deemed acceptable as an authorization for release
of financial and credit information. Buyer is authorized fo update such information and financial and credit profiles from time to time as it
deems appropriate. Seller waives, to the maximum extent permitted by law, any claim for damages against Buyer or any of its affiliates
relating to any investigation undertaken by or on behalf of Buyer as permitted by this Agreement or disclosure of information as
permitted by this Agreement.

10. Transactional History. Seller authorizes all of its banks and brokers and Payment Card processors to provide Buyer with Seller’s
banking, brokerage and/or processing history to determine qualification or continuation in this program, or for coliections upon an Event
of Default.

)
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11. Publicity. Seller hereby authorizes Buyer to use its name in listings of clients and in advertising and marketing materials.

12. Application of Amounts Received by Buyer. Buyer reserves the right to apply amounts received by it under this Agreement to
any fees or other charges due to Buyer from Seller prier to applying such amounts to reduce the amount of any outstanding Purchased
Amount.

13. Representations, Warranties and Covenants of Seller:

13.1 Good Faith, Best Efforts and Due Diligence. Selier will conduct its business in goed faith and will use its best efforts to
continue its business at least at its current level, to ensure that Buyer obtains the Purchased Amount.

13.2 Stacking Prohibited. Seller shalt not enter into any Seller cash advance or any loan agreement that relates to or involvas its
Future Receipts with any party other than Buyer for the duration of this Agreement. Buyer may share infermation regarding this
Agreement with any third party in order to determine whether Seller is in compliance with this provision.

13.3 Financlal Condition and Financial Informatien. Any bank statements and financial statements of Seller that have been
furnished to Buyer, and future statements that will be fumished to Buyer, fairly represent the financial condition of Seller at such
dates, and Seller will notify Buyer immediately if there are material adverse changes, financial or otherwise, in the condition or
operation of Seller or any change in the ownership of Seller. Buyer may request statements at any time during the performance of
this Agreement and the Seller shall provide them fo Buyer within five business days. Furthermore, Selier represents that all
documents, forms and recorded interviews provided to or with Buyer are true, accurate and complete in alf respects, and accurately
reflect Seller’s financial condition and resuits of operations. Seller further agrees to authorize the release of any past or future tax
returns to Seller.

13.4 Governmental Approvals. Selier is in compliance and shall comply with all laws and has valid permits, authorizations and
licenses to awn, operate and lease its properties and to conduct the business in which it is presently engaged and/or will engage in
hereafter.

13.5. Authority to Enter Into This Agreement. Seller and the person(s) signing this Agreement on behalf of Seller, have full power
and authority to incur and perform the obligations under this Agreement. all of which have been duly authorized.

13.6. Change of Name or Location or Sale or Closing of Business. Seller will not conduct Seller's businesses under any name
other than as disclosed to Buyer or change any of its places of business without prior written consent of Buyer. Seller will not sell,
dispose, transfer or otherwise convey ail or substantially all of its business or assets without (i) the express prior written consent of
Buyer, and (i} the written agreement of any purchaser or transferee assuming all of Seller's obligations under this Agreement
pursuant to documentation satisfactory to Buyer. Except as disclosed to Buyer in writing, Seller has no current plans to close its
business either temporarily, whether for renovations, repairs or any other purpose, or permanently. Seller agrees that until Buyer has
received all of the Purchased Amount Seller will not voluntarily close its business on a temporarily basis for renovations, repairs, or
any other purposes, This provision, however, does not prohibit Seller from closing its business temporarily if such closing is required
to conduct renovations or repairs that are required by local ordinance or other legal order, such as from a health or fire inspector, or
if otherwise forced to do so by circumstances outside of the control of Seller. Prior to any such closure, Seller will provide Buyer ten
business days’ notice to the extent practicable.

13.7. No Pending or Contemplated Bankruptcy. As of the date Seller executes this Agreement, Seller is not insolvent and does
not contemplate and has not filed any petition for bankruptcy protection under Title 11 of the United States Code and there has been
no involuntary petition brought or pending against Seller. Seller represents that it has not consulted with a bankruptcy attorney within
six months prior to the date of this Agreement. Seller further warrants that it does not anticipate filing a bankruptcy petition and it
does not anticipate that an involuntary petition will be filed against it.

13.8. Seller to Maintain Insurance. Seller will possess and maintain insurance in such amounts and against such risks as are
necessary to protect its business and will provide proof of such insurance to Buyer upon demand.
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13.9. Seller to Pay Taxes Promptly. Seller will promptly pay all necessary taxes, including but not limited to employment and sales
and use taxes.

13.10. No Violation of Prior Agreements. Seller's execution and performance of this Agreement will not conflict with any other
agreement, obligation, promise, court order, administrative order or decree, law or regulation to which Seller is subject, including any
agreement the prohibits the sale or pledge of Seller's future receipts.

13.11. No Diversion of Receipts. Seller will not permit any event fo occur that could cause a diversion of any of Seller's Future
Receipts from the Account to any other entity.

13.12. Seller’s Knowledge and Representation. Seller represents warrants and agrees that it is a sophisticated business entity
familiar with the kind of transaction covered by the Agreement; it was represented by counsel or had full opportunity to consult with
counsel.

14. Rights of Buyer:

14.1 Financing Statements Financing Statements and Security Interest. Following the occurrence of an Event of Default, Seller
grants Buyer a security interest in all of Seller's present and future accounts receivable in an amount not to exceed the Purchased
Amount, and in the Event of Default, not to exceed

the Purchased Amount and all fees and cost contemplated under this Agreement, wherever located, and related proceeds now or
hereafter owned or acquired by Seller.

Seller authorizes Buyer to file one or more UCC-1 forms consistent with the Uniform Commercial Code (*UCC") in order to give
notice of this security interest and that the Purchased Amount of Future Receipts is the sole property of Buyer. The UCC filing may
state that such sale is intended to be a sale and not an assignment for security and may state that the Seller is prohibited from
abtaining any financing that impairs the value of the Future Receipts or Buyer's right to collect same. Seller authorizes Buyer to debit
the Account for all costs incurred by Buyer associated with the filing, amendment, or termination of any UCC filings.

14.2 Right of Access. in order to ensure that Seller is complying with the terms of this Agreement, Buyer shall have the right to (i)
enter, without notice, the premises of Seller's business for the purpose of inspecting and checking Seiler's transaction processing
terminals to ensure the terminals are properly programmed to submit and or batch Seller's weekly receipts to the Processor and to
ensure that Seller has not violated any other provision of this Agreement, and (i) Seller shall provide access to its employees and
records and all other items as requested by Buyer, and (iii) have Seller provide information about its business operations, banking
refationships, vendors, landlord and other information to allow Buyer to interview any relevant parties.

14.3 Phone Recordings and Contact. Seller agrees that any cali between Buyer and Seller, and their agents and employees may
be recorded or manitored. Further, Seller agrees that (i) it has an established business relationship with Buyer, its employees and
agents and that Seller may be contacted from time-to-time regarding this or other business transactions; (i} that such
communications and contacts are not unsolicited or inconvenient; and (jii) that any such contact may be made at any phone number,
emails address, or facsimile number given to Buyer by the Seller, its agents or employees, including cellular telephones.

15. Events of Default. The occurrence of any of the following events shall constitute an “Event of Default": (a) Seller interferes with
Buyer's right to collect the Weekly Amount; (b) Seller violates any term of covenant in this Agreement; (c) Seller uses multiple
depositary accounts without the prior written consent of Buyer; (d) Seller changes its depositing account or its payment card processor
without the prior written consent of Buyer,; (e) Seller defaults under any of the terms, covenants and conditions of any other agreement
with Buyer: or (f) Seller fails to provide timely notice to Buyer such that (i) where Seller is on a daily payment plan, two or more ACH
fransactions attempted by Buyer within one calendar month are rejected by Seller's bank, or (i) where Seller is on a weekly payment
plan, one or more ACH transaction attempted by Buyer is rejected by Seller's bank at any given time that such payment under the
payment plan is due.

16. Remedies. If any Event of Default occurs, Buyer may proceed to protect and enforce its rights including, but not limited to, the
following:

16.1. The Specified Percentage shall equal 100%. The fulf uncollected Purchased Amount plus all fees and charges (including legal
fees) due under this Agreement will become due and payabie in full immediately.
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16.2. Buyer may enforce the provisions of the Guaranty of Performance against the guarantor. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary herein, in the event that Seller receives funds, from its clients or customers or any entity holding its receivables or otherwise
{collectively, the “A/C Holder”), for which the applicable A/C Holder for any reason is or may be responsible to make payment to Seller,
then the Seller, agrees to make prompt payment of such funds to Buyer or to reimburse A/C Holder therefore in the event the A/C
Holder has made such payment to their detriment, and Seller hereby guarantees to Buyer the prompt payment of such funds by Seller
and further hereby indemnifies Buyer and any applicable A/C Holder from and against any and all loss, cost or expense in connection
therewith.

16.3. Buyer may proceed to protect and enforce its rights and remedies by arbitration or lawsuit. In any such arbitration or lawsuit,
under which Buyer shall recover Judgment against Saller, Saller shall be liable for all of Buyer's costs of the lawsuit, including but
not limited to all reasonable attorneys' fees and court costs. However, the rights of Buyer under this provision shall be limited as
provided in the arbitration provision set forth below.

16.4. [Intentionally Omitted]

16.5. Buyer may debit Seller's depository accounts wherever situated by means of ACH debit or facsimile signature on a computer-
generated check drawn on Seller's bank account or otherwise for all sums due to Buyer

16.6. Seller shall pay to Buyer all reasonable costs associated with the Event of Default and the enforcement of Buyer's remedies,
including but nat limited to court costs and attorneys' feas

16.7. Buyer may exercise and enforce its rights as a secured party under the UCC.

16.8. All rights, powers and remedies of Buyer in connection with this Agreement may be exercised at any time by Buyer after the
occurrence of an Event of Default, are cumulative and not exclusive, and shall be in addition to any other rights, powers or remedies
provided by law or equity.

17. Modifications; Agreements, No modification, amendment, waiver or consent of any provision of this Agreement shall be effective
unless the same shall be in writing and signed by Buyer

18. Assignment. Buyer may assign, transfer or sell its rights to receive the Purchased Amount or delegate its duties hereunder, either
in whole or in part, with or without prior written nofice to Seller.

19. Notices.

18.1. Notices from Buyer fo Seller. Buyer may send any notices, disclosures, terms and conditions, other documents, and any future
changes to Seller by regular mail or by e-mail, at Buyer's option and Seller consents to such electronic delivery. Notices sent by e~
mail are effective when sent. Notices sent by regular mail become effective upon mailing to Seller's address set forth in this
Agreement.

19.2. Notices from Seller to Buyer. Seller may send any notices to Buyer by e-mail only upon the prior written consent of Buyer,
which consent may be withheld or revoked at any time in Buyer's sole discretion. Otherwise, any notices or other communications

from Seller to Buyer must be delivered by certified mail, return receipt requested, to Buyer's address set forth in this Agreement.
Notices sent to Buyer shali become effective only upon receipt by Buyer.

Initials: 6 ‘Agile Capital Funding

p j ; 395259

Mine IT AR 7AW~ TR ORIEROaAaNEaROREAHNEA




20. Binding Effect; Governing Law, Venue and Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Seller,
Buyer and their respective successors and assigns, except that Seller shall not have the right to assign its rights hersunder or any
interest herein without the prior written consent of Buyer which consent may be withheld in Buyer's sole discretion. This Agreement
shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the state of New York, without regards to any applicable principals
of conflicts of law. Any suit, action or proceeding arising hereunder, or the interpretation, performance or breach of this Agreement,
shall, if Buyer so elects, be instituted in any court sitting in New York, (the "Acceptable Forums”). Seller agrees that the Acceptable
Forums are convenient o it, and submits to the jurisdiction of the Acceptable Forums and waives any and all objections to jurisdiction or
venue. Should such proceeding be initiated in any other forum, Seller waives any right to eppose any motion or application made by
Buyer to transfer such proceeding to an Acceptable Forum.

21, Survival of Representation, etc. All representations, warranties and covenants herein shall survive the execution and delivery of
this Agreement and shall continue in full force until ali obligations under this Agreement shall have been satisfied in full.

22. Interpretation. All Parties hereto have reviewed this Agreement with an attorney of their own choosing and have relfied only on their
own attormey’s guidance and advice. No construction determinations shall be made against either Party hereto as drafter.

23. Entire Agreement and Severability. This Agreement embodies the entire agreement between Seller and Buyer and supersedes
all prior agreements and understandings relating to the subject matter hereof. In case any of the provisions in this Agreement is found
to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, the validity, legality and enforceability of any other provision contained herein shall
not in any way be affected or impaired.

24. Facsimile Acceptance. Facsimile signatures hereon, or other electronic means reflecting the party's signature hereto, shall be
deemed acceptable for all purposes.

25, Confidentiality: The terms and conditions of this Agreement are proprietary and confidential uniess required by law. Selter shall not
disclose this information to anyone other than its attorney, accountant or similar service provider and then only to the extent such
person uses the information solely for purpose of advising Seller and first agrees in writing to be bound by the terms of this Section. A
breach entitles Buyer to damages and legal fees as well as temporary restraining order and preliminary injunction without bond.

26. Monitoring, Recording, and Solicitations.

26.1. Authorization to Contact Seller by Phone. Seller authorizes Buyer, its affiliates, agents and independent contractors to
contact Seller at any telephone number Seller provides to Buyer or from which Seller places a call to Buyer, or any telephone
number where Buyer believes it may reach Seller, using any means of communication, including but not fimited to calls or text
messages to mobile, cellular, wireless or simiiar devices or calis or text messages using an automated telephone dialing system
andfor artificial voices or prerecorded messages, even if Seller incurs charges for receiving such communications

26.2. Authorization to Contact Setler by Other Means. Seller also agree that Buyer, its affiliates, agents and independent
contractors, may use any other medium not prohibited by law including, but not limited to, mail, e-mail and facsimile, to contact
Seller. Seller expressly consents to conduct business by electronic means.

27. JURY WAIVER. THE PARTIES WAIVE THE RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY COURT IN ANY SUIT, ACTION OR
PROCEEDING ON ANY MATTER ARISING IN CONNECTION WITH OR IN ANY WAY RELATED TO THE TRANSACTIONS OF
WHICH THIS AGREEMENT 1S A PART OR ITS ENFORCEMENT, EXCEPT WHERE SUCH WAIVER IS PROHIBITED BY LAW OR
DEEMED BY A COURT OF LAW TO BE AGAINST PUBLIC POLICY. THE PARTIES ACKNOWLEDGE THAT EACH MAKES THIS
WAIVER KNOWINGLY, WILLINGLY AND VOLUNTARILY AND WITHOUT DURESS, AND ONLY AFTER EXTENSIVE
CONSIDERATION OF THE RAMIFICATIONS OF THIS WAIVER WITH THEIR ATTORNEYS.
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28. CLASS ACTION WAIVER. THE PARTIES WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO ASSERT ANY CLAIMS AGAINST THE OTHER PARTY AS A
REPRESENTATIVE OR MEMBER IN ANY CLASS OR REPRESENTATIVE ACTION, EXCEPT WHERE SUCH WAIVER 1S
PROHIBITED BY LAW OR DEEMED BY A COURT OF LAW TO BE AGAINST PUBLIC POLICY. TO THE EXTENT EITHER PARTY
1S PERMITTED BY LAW OR COURT QF LAW TO PROCEED WITH A CLASS OR REPRESENTATIVE ACTION AGAINST THE
OTHER, THE PARTIES AGREE THAT: (1) THE PREVAILING PARTY SHALL NOT BE ENTITLED TO RECOVER ATTORNEYS’
FEES OR COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH PURSUING THE CLASS OR REPRESENTATIVE ACTION (NOT WITHSTANDING ANY
OTHER PROVISION IN THIS AGREEMENT); AND (I} THE PARTY WHO INITIATES OR PARTICIPATES AS A MEMBER OF THE

CLASS WILL NOT SUBMIT A CLAIM OR OTHERWISE PARTICIPATE IN ANY RECOVERY SECURED THROUGH THE CLASS OR
REPRESENTATIVE ACTION.

29. ARBITRATION. IF BUYER, SELLER OR ANY GUARANTOR REQUESTS, THE OTHER PARTIES AGREE TO ARBITRATE ALL
DISPUTES AND CLAIMS ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT. IF BUYER, SELLER OR ANY GUARANTOR
SEEKS TO HAVE A DISPUTE SETTLED BY ARBITRATION, THAT PARTY MUST FIRST SEND TO ALL OTHER PARTIES, BY
CERTIFIED MAIL, A WRITTEN NOTICE OF INTENT TO ARBITRATE. IF BUYER, SELLER OR ANY GUARANTOR DO NOT
REACH AN AGREEMENT TO RESOLVE THE CLAIM WITHIN 30 DAYS AFTER THE NOTICE IS RECEIVED, BUYER, SELLER OR
ANY GUARANTOR MAY COMMENCE AN ARBITRATION PROCEEDING WITH THE AMERICAN ARBITRATION ASSOCIATION
(“AAA") OR NATIONAL ARBITRATION FORUM (“NAF”). BUYER WILL PROMPTLY REIMBURSE SELLER OR THE
GUARANTOR ANY ARBITRATION FILING FEE, HOWEVER, IN THE EVENT THAT BOTH SELLER AND THE GUARANTOR MUST
PAY FILING FEES, BUYER WILL ONLY REIMBURSE SELLER’S ARBITRATION FILING FEE AND, EXCEPT AS PROVIDED IN
THE NEXT SENTENCE, BUYER WILL PAY ALL ADMINISTRATION AND ARBITRATOR FEES. IF THE ARBITRATOR FINDS THAT
EITHER THE SUBSTANCE OF THE CLAIM RAISED BY SELLER OR THE GUARANTOR OR THE RELIEF SOUGHT BY SELLER
OR THE GUARANTOR IS IMPROPER OR NOT WARRANTED, AS MEASURED BY THE STANDARDS SET FORTH iN FEDERAL
RULE OF PROCEDURE 11(B), THEN BUYER WILL PAY THESE FEES ONLY IF REQUIRED BY THE AAA OR NAF RULES.
SELLER AND THE GUARANTOR AGREE THAT, BY ENTERING INTO THIS AGREEMENT, THEY ARE WAIVING THE RIGHT TO
TRIAL BY JURY. BUYER, SELLER OR ANY GUARANTOR MAY BRING CLAIMS AGAINST ANY OTHER PARTY ONLY IN THEIR
INDIVIDUAL CAPACITY, AND NOT AS A PLAINTIFF OR CLASS MEMEBER IN ANY PURPORTED CLASS OR REPRESENTATIVE
PROCEEDING. FURTHER, BUYER, SELLER AND ANY GUARANTOR AGREE THAT THE ARBITRATOR MAY NOT
CONSOLIDATE PROCEEDINGS FOR MORE THAN ONE PERSON’S CLAIMS, AND MAY NOT OTHERWISE PRESIDE OVER ANY
FORM OF A REPRESENTATIVE OR CLASS PROCEEDING, AND THAT iF THIS SPECIFIC PROVISION IS FOUND
UNENFORCEABLE, THEN THE ENTIRETY OF THIS ARBITRATION CLAUSE SHALL BE NULL AND VOID,

30. RIGHT TO OPT OUT OF ARBITRATION. SELLER AND GUARANTOR(S) MAY OPT OUT OF THIS CLAUSE. TO OPT QUT OF
THIS ARBITRATION CLAUSE, SELLER AND EACH GUARANTOR MUST SEND BUYER A NOTICE THAT THE SELLER AND
EACH GUARANTOR DOES NOT WANT THIS CLAUSE TO APPLY TO THIS AGREEMENT. FOR ANY OPT OUT TO BE
EFFECTIVE, SELLER AND EACH GUARANTOR MUST SEND AN OPT OUT NOTICE TO THE FOLLOWING ADDRESS BY
REGISTERED MAIL, WITHIN 14 DAYS AFTER THE DATE OF THIS AGREEMENT: BUYER - ARBITRATION OPT OUT, Agile
Capital Funding, 104 E 25th St, Suite 1001, New York, NY 10010, ATTENTION: LEGAL DEPARTMENT.
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31. SERVICE OF PROCESS. IN ADDITION TO THE METHODS OF SERVICE ALLOWED BY THE NEW YORK STATE CIVIL
PRACTICE LAW & RULES (“CPLR"), SELLER HEREBY CONSENTS TO SERVICE OF PROCESS UPON IT BY REGISTERED OR
CERTIFIED MAIL, RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED, SERVICE HEREUNDER SHALL BE COMPLETE UPON SELLER'S ACTUAL
RECEIPT OF PROCESS OR UPON BUYER'S RECEIPT OF THE RETURN THEREOF BY THE UNITED STATES POSTAL
SERVICE AS REFUSED OR UNDELIVERABLE. SELLER MUST PROMPTLY NOTIFY BUYER, IN WRITING, OF EACH AND
EVERY CHANGE OF ADDRESS TO WHICH SERVICE OF PROCESS CAN BE MADE. SERVICE BY BUYER TO THE LAST
KNOWN ADDRESS SHALL BE SUFFICIENT, SELLER WILL HAVE (30) CALENDAR DAYS AFTER SERVICE HEREUNDER IS
COMPLETE IN WHICH TO RESPOND. FURTHERMORE, SELLER EXPRESSLY CONSENTS THAT ANY AND ALL NOTICE(S),
DEMAND(S), REQUEST(S) OR OTHER COMMUNICATION(S) UNDER AND PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT FOR THE
PURCHASE AND SALE OF FUTURE RECEIVABLES SHALL BE DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF
THIS AGREEMENT FOR THE PURCHASE AND SALE OF FUTURE RECEIVABLES.

32. FEE STRUCTURE.
a. NSF: $75.00
b. ACH REJECTION: $100.00
c. BANK CHANGE: $50.00
. BLOCKED ACCOUNT: $2,500.00
e. DEFAULT: $5,000.00

SPRINGBIG, INC.

Seller:

faud Sphes
Agreed to by {Signature})

PAUL SYKES

Name:

Title: Authorized  Representative

SPRINGEIG, INC.
Guarantor:

iam{ Jy@’
Agreed to by: (Signature)

PAUL SYKES

Name:

Title: Authorized  Representative
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EXHIBIT 32.1

Certification by the Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, as
Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, I, Jeffrey Harris, hereby certify that, to the best of my knowledge, SpringBig Holdings, Inc’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three months ended
September 30, 2023 (the Report), as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 13, 2023, fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and that the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of SpringBig
Holdings, Inc.

/s/ Jeffrey Harris

Jeffrey Harris
Chief Executive Officer

November 13, 2023



EXHIBIT 32.2

Certification by the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, as
Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, I, Paul Sykes, hereby certify that, to the best of my knowledge, SpringBig Holdings, Inc’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three months ended September
30, 2023 (the Report), as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 13, 2023, fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and that the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of SpringBig Holdings,
Inc.

/s/ Paul Sykes

Paul Sykes

Chief Financial Officer
November 13, 2023




EXHIBIT 33.1

CERTIFICATION BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jeffrey Harris, certify that:
1. Ihave reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three months ended September 30, 2023 of SpringBig Holdings, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))
and internal control over financial reporting (as defined by Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
prepared;

b. designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth
fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial reporting, which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls over financial reporting.
Date: November 13, 2023

[s/ Jeffrey Harris
Jeffrey Harris
Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 33.2

CERTIFICATION BY THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Paul Sykes, certify that:
1. Ihave reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three months ended September 30, 2023 of SpringBig Holdings, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))
and internal control over financial reporting (as defined by Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
prepared;

b. designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth
fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial reporting, which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls over financial reporting.

Date: November 13, 2023

/s/ Paul Sykes
Paul Sykes
Chief Financial Officer



